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is a leading provider of specialized
products and engineering services
vital to the operation of natural gas

equipment and auxiliary power
equipment.




NOTE: Information presented reflects predecessor company results for 1998 through 2000.
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Due to ownership structure changes, represents income {loss) before extraordi- Due to ownership structure changes,
prior periods (99) are not comparable. nary items, interest, taxes, depreciation, prior periods (99} are not comparable.
amortization and recapitalization charge. Net Debt = long-term debt less total
cash and cash equivalents.

For a complete reconciliation of adjusted
EBITDA please see page 32.




DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

Despite a down cycle in the U.S. power generation market, our continued focus on
operations yielded excellent financial results in 2003. As the only company of our kind

to supply such a large range of products to gas turbine original equipment manufacturers

(OEMs), as well as heat recovery systems to power plant developers, Global Power

Equipment Group has considerable insight into these markets. Based on our firsthand

outlook of the U.S. energy market, we believe our opportunities here at home could be

limited for several years. That’s why we chose to downsize our domestic operations and

invest in key international markets in 2003.

We continued to streamline our operations and reduce
our manufacturing capacity in the United States and Mexico,
focusing instead on the expansion of our sales and engineering
support on the international front. We believe the actions taken
during 2003 will help us better serve our growing customer
base abroad by building on our strengths — engineering
excellence, unmatched quality, and superior customer service.
From our industry-leading position, strengthened by our global
base of low-cost international manufacturing partners, we are
optimistic that 2004 could be a pivotal year for our company
and our shareholders.

As a global player in world infrastructure development for
power generation and efficiency solutions for process industries,
Global Power Equipment Group is unique. We believe no other
company does everything we do, and few competitors are devel-
oping new customer relationships in distant markets. Serving the
customer on a face-to-face basis is vital to our success, and
during 2003, our senior managers collectively traveled well
over a million miles to Europe, Asia, the Middle East, and Latin
America to spend critical time with new and potential customers.

Teaming up with our sales representatives and our global
sourcing group, | personally spearheaded an initiative in China
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This is an engineering schematic
for one of six exhaust stacks for

a new power plant in Jakarta,
Indonesia based on a Siemens
V94.2 gas turbine. The power plant
is being built as a simple-cycle unit
and may later be converted to a
combined-cycle plant — something
quite common in Indonesia.
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This is an engineering schematic of
one of two HRSGs that we are build-

ing for a new General Electric Frame

OF gas turbine power plant in

Shanghai, China. When completed in
2005, the pawer plant will produce
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approximately 800 megawatts of
electricity. Shanghai is the most
populous city in China and today has
an estimated 20 million residents.
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and East Asia to strengthen our presence in the region, meeting
with our customers and manufacturing partners to capitalize on
the opportunities that exist in these areas. As we announced in
early 2004, our strategy is already vielding positive sales
results. For the first time since early 2001, our bookings are
strengthening and our firm backlog is on the rise. In addition, we
have developed a strategic plan to capture a larger share of the
business opportunity that is rapidly developing in China and East
Asia. It's important to note, however, that increasing sales is
only part of the equation.

Limited opportunities inside the United States and fierce
competition in global markets make it even more important for
us to control our costs, understand where the markets are,
discover ways to source materials for less than our competitors,
and keep our focus on execution. Our company-wide restructur-
ing program, designed to reduce unneeded overhead in this
down cycle, is one way to drive savings to the bottom line.
Flexibility and resourcefulness in other areas also produced
measurable benefits in 2003, These actions, coupled with
shifting our manufacturing to lower-cost locations, produced
a record gross margin of 27.1 percent - up from 22.4
percent in 2002.

Not only did we set a new company record in this arena; we
managed to do it without sacrificing our high standard of service
and quality. Consistent quality is the cornerstone of our opera-
tion, and is something we constantly strive to refine. As market
demand fell, many of our competitors began cutting corners to
win business. In contrast, Global Power Equipment Group contin-
ued to focus on producing the highest quality products, which is
a great competitive advantage. Formal recognition of our high

service levels and quality came to us in 2003, as GE Energy
named Global Power Equipment Group as the 2003 Supplier of
the Year. GE also recognized one of our operating companies as
the “Most Migrated Supplier in China” at a recent GE supplier
conference held in Shanghai. We are proud of these accolades,
because they reflect the customer’s satisfaction with our quality
and performance.

Despite our positive expectations for 2004 and beyond,
Global Power Equipment Group was not immune to declining
market demand in 2003. As the power market cycled down, so
did our financial results. Our revenues for 2003 declined 55
percent to $264 million, while our earnings per share declined
62 percent to $0.43. We incurred approximately $4 million of
restructuring charges in the final quarter of the year as part of
our effort to streamline our operations — which translated into
approximately $0.05 per share. Also as a consequence of weak
U.S. power markets, approximately $35 million in orders was
cancelled from our firm backlog, resulting in a year-end backlog
of $178 million.

The good news, however, is that we recorded $203 million
in new bookings during the year — 60 percent from customers
outside of North America. We ended the year with stronger book-
ings from customers in Asia, which accounted for nearly half of
the bookings added to our backlog during the fourth quarter.

We continued to strengthen our balance sheet throughout
the year and used our strong cash flow to further reduce our
long-term debt. During 2003, we cut our debt by more than half
and emerged net debtfree with $51 million of cash and cash
equivalents on hand and only $25 million of debt, compared to
$60 million of debt at the end of 2002. At the start of 2004, our
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cash position greatly exceeds our total debt. We believe our
strong financial position remains a vital asset as we vie for new
business, as it presents one less concern for our customers.
Our use of cash for capital expenditures remained low —
less than a half a million dollars, or less than two-tenths of 1
percent of our 2003 revenues. Our program of investing capital
wisely, maximizing our margins, reducing our fixed overhead,
and driving profits to the bottom line produced a pretax return
on invested capital of 26 percent for 2003. And, despite our
lower profit performance, our 22 percent pretax return on
shareholder equity remains quite respectable.
We've seen a lot of change in our industry over the past
several years — much of which has not been welcome.
However, despite the decline in overall market demand, Global
Power Equipment Group remains structurally and financially
strong. Our intensity level has increased, as has our internal
efficiency. Most importantly, the spirit of our organization
remains upbeat, and our operating groups remain focused on
sales and project execution. We believe the market cycle has
run its course, and that 2004 will represent the bottom of the
trough. We're eager for the next phase to begin, and we're
f ' \ poised to maximize our opportunities as the market evolves.
f‘ ' \ The entire management team of Global Power Equipment
S Group is committed to bringing our shareholders, customers,
/ ~ business partners, and employees continued value and success.
e/ Qur 2003 results took a lot of hard work, teamwork, and skil,
LarrY D. EDWARDS . .
Chairman, President and and | would like to personally thank everyone who contributed
Chicf Exvoutive Officer to that effort. Let me also express to our shareholders our
continued gratitude for your support as we move ahead.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview
Global Power Equipment Group Inc. (referred to herein as "we,” "us,” “our,” "GPEG" and the "Company”} is a global designer, engineer and
fabricator of a comprehensive portfolio of equipment for gas turbine power plants and power-related equipment for industrial operations, with
over 30 years of power generation industry experience. We believe that we are a leader in our industry, offering one of the broadest ranges of
gas turbine power plant and other power-related equipment in the world. We hold the number one or number two market position by sales in a
majority of our product lines. Our equipment is installed in power plants and in industria! operations in more than 40 countrigs on Six conti-
nents. We believe that we have one of the largest installed bases of equipment for power generation in the world. In addition, we provide our
customers with value-added services including engineering, retrofit and upgrade, and maintenance and repair.

We sel! our products to the gas turbine power generation market. Qur products are critical to the efficient operation of gas turbine
power plants and are highly engineered to meet customer-specific requirements. Qur products include:

* heat recovery steam generators; * exhaust systems;
o filter houses; ¢ diverter dampers; and
¢ inlet systems; * specialty boilers and related products

» gas and steam turbine enclosures;

We market and sell our products globally under the Deltak, Braden and Consofidated Fabricators brand names through our worldwide
sales network.

We fabricate our equipment through a combination of in-house manufacturing and extensive outsourcing relationships. Our network of
high-quality subcontractors, located throughout 17 countries, allows us to manufacture equipment for power plant projects and power-related
equipment worldwide at competitive prices. Our subcontractors enable us to meet increasing demand without being restricted by internal man-
uvfacturing capacity limitations, thus minimizing our capital expenditure requirements.Using subcontractors also allows us to minimize our fixed
costs, thereby providing a significant benefit during times of decreased demand.

We believe our design and engineering capabilities differentiate us from our competitors. By providing high-quality products on a timely
basis and offering a broad range of equipment, we have forged longstanding refationships with the leading power industry participants, includ-
ing General Electric, Mitsubishi Heavy Industries, Siemens-Westinghouse, ExxonMabil, Southern Companies, Tenaska and Bechtel.

Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report on Form 10-K includes certain “forward-looking statements.” Forward-logking state-
ments represent our beliefs regarding future events, many of which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and outside of our control. These
forward-looking statements include, in particular, the statements about our plans, strategies and prospects. Although we believe that our
plans, intentions and expectations reflected in or suggested by these forward-looking statements are reasonable, these forward-locking state-
ments rely on assumptions and are subject to risks and uncertainties that may prevent us from achieving our plans, intentions or expectations.
When used in this report, the words “expect,” “may,” “intend,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “seek” and similar expressions, as well as
statements regarding our focus for the future, are generally intended to identify forward-looking statements,

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements we make in this Form 10-K
are set forth in “ltem 1. Business,” and "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of
this Form 10-K. These forward-iooking statements involve risks and uncertainties, including those discussed under "Risk Factors” included in
Item 1. Alf forward-locking statements attributable to us, or persons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by the
cautionary statements found in the sections mentioned above. These cautionary statements identify impartant factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those predicted in any forward-looking statements Accordingly, undue reliance should not be placed on these
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to update or
revise the forward-looking statements.

Fiscal 2003 Developments

During 2003, approximately 87 percent of our revenues were from sales of equipment and services for gas turbine power plants. The remaining
13 percent of our revenues were derived from the sale of specialty boiler systems for co-generation applications and for process industries.
Approximately 63 percent of our revenues in 2003 were from sales in North America.

Beginning in late 2001 and continuing through 2003, the health of the U.S. merchant electrical generation industry deteriorated signifi-
cantly as falling power prices, coupled with rising natural gas costs and reduced access to capital gave rise to postponements and cancella-
tions of planned new power generation capacity inside the United States. The cancellation of new electrical generation projects inside the
United States during 2002 and 2003 affected our order bookings during 2003. Our bookings from U.S. customers during 2003 declined to $65
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million compared to approximately $205 million in 2002, representing a decline of 68 percent. In addition, approximately $35 million of orders
were removed from our firm backlog during 2003 due to cancellations by customers. Bookings from international customers were relatively
unchanged between 2002 and 2003 at $108 million and $105 million, respectively.

The Company is directly affected by the overall trend in new power plant construction, inside the United States as well as on a global
basis. The significant decline in the profitability of U.S.-based merchant energy firms has weighed and, in our opinion, will continue to weigh
on the revenues and profitability for our Company and for other firms that supply products for power generation to the United States market,
particularly those which produce their products primarily inside the United States.

Supply and Demand Trends

United States. According to the Energy Information Administration (EIA), an arm of the U.S. Department of Energy, an estimated 45 gigawatts of
New generation capacity was added in the United States during 2003, down approximately 37 percent from the 72 gigawatts of new capacity
that was added during 2002. The EIA expects new generation capacity additions in the United States will continue to trend downward in the
near-term, until the 2006 to 2010 timeframe, at which time the EIA estimates retirements of older generation capacity will significantly outpace
new additions. Given the extended lead-times required for developing new electrical power generation capacity for a particular market, our
bockings and revenues can rise or fall sharply prior to the actual commissioning of new capacity. Limited development, deferral of planned pro-
jects and cancellations will reduce the potential recognition of revenues and profits for us. In market economies such as the United States, the
lags between price signals and the construction of new power plants can cause boom-and-bust cycles for the suppliers of equipment for power
generation. Given this situation, the Company's revenues will not necessarily correlate precisely with changes in reported actual or forecasted
new capacity. A copy of the EIA’s latest assessment of electrical generation supply and demand trends for the United States can be found on the
Internet at www.eia.doe.gov/oiaf/forecasting.html.

International Markets. According to the International Energy Agency (IEA}, in its World Energy Investment Qutiook 2003, approximately $10
trillion will be required over the next three decades to expand and upgrade the global efectricity sector. This estimated level of spending is
approximately three times the level of spending in real terms than was invested in the electricity sector in the prior thirty years. Approximately
one-half, or $5 trillion, will be spent in developing countries, two-thirds, or approximately $3 trillion, of which in developing Asia alone. The IEA
estimates that the greatest investment in new generating and transmission capacity will be made in China and will approach $2 tritlion.

The IEA estimates that 4,700 gigawatts of new generation capacity will be required warldwide by 2030 and the importance of natural
gas-based generating plants will rise from 17 percent in 2000 to 31 percent by 2030 requiring over 2,000 gigawatts of new natural gas turbine
based capacity. Most of this new gas turbine capacity will employ combined cycle technology. The IEA'S latest assessment of worldwide
generation supply and demand trends, along with the expected investment through 2030 can be found on the Internet at www.iea.org.

Our Strategy

Given the EIA's assessment of supply and demand trends, and the existing merchant industry conditions inside the United States, we believe
the market apportunities inside the United States for us over the next several years will remain subdued. In view of this outlook, as well as the
|EAs outlook for internatianal supply and demand, we intend ta take a number of initiatives to maximize sharehalder value and enhance our
market position in the global power generation industry. We intend to:

* [everage our presence and experience in international power markets. We have a successful record of selling our products to
customers in over 40 countries during the past two decades. Through our large international network of manufacturing relationships
and direct sales channels, we are uniquely positioned to undertake power generation projects throughout the world.

Recognizing the market opportunities for gas turbine generating capacity additions globally, we continued to expand our presence
in a number of regions outside of the United States during 2003, particularly in China. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we booked
a significant volume of business with the gas turbine manufacturers that are supplying the initial tranche of new gas turbines into
China. We also expanded our base of manufacturing partners inside China during the year to supply equipment to Chinese
customers, as well as for export from China, for the future. In early 2004, we also expanded our sales and customer support
infrastructure in China by significantly expanding our office in Shanghai.

With manufacturing partnerships secured in 17 countries outside of the United States, our global supply capability, close proximity
to key markets, breadth of products and experience allows us to serve our multinational customers’ needs in a timely and efficient
manner and are critical prerequisites for obtaining project awards.

s leverage cur design and engineering capabilities to expand our product lines. We intend to expand our product lines to capture a
larger share of our customers’ equipment purchases. Through our design and engineering capabilities and experience in gas turbine
technology, we have developed a number of complementary product lines, including inlet cooling systems, pulse filters, air filter
elements and diverter dampers. Throughout our history, we have successfully introduced new end-use applications for our underlying
technologies, including products for the process, marine, pulp and paper and pharmaceutical industries.
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* Position the Company to be the preferred supplier in the U.S. market for the long-term. Our design and engineering expertise positions
us to bid on and execute virtually any major gas turbine power plant project, as well as specific applications incorporating our
specialty boilers, which are frequently installed for co-generation projects. Since 2001, the downturn in U.S. power generation markets
has negatively impacted several of our competitors to the paint where some have been forced to exit the market or, are, in our opinion,
less viable going forward. Our low-cost sourcing and manufacturing capability enhances our competitive market position and enables
us to participate in virtually every location where new power projects will be added.

* Pursue strategic acquisitions. We will continue to evaluate select acquisitions, which could increase our market share in existing
product lines, broaden our overall product and service offerings, penetrate difficutt markets more easily or expand our geographic
reach. The power generation equipment industry is highly fragmented, comprised largely of small companies or corporate divisions
with relatively limited product fines. The fragmented nature of the industry provides us with numerous acquisition opportunities.

Gas Turbine Technology. Gas turbine power plants are weli pasitioned to benefit from the need for new or more efficient power generation
infrastructure. The advantages of power generation plants utilizing gas turbine technologies versus other technologies include:

* |ower construction costs;

* shorter construction period;

¢ improved operating efficiency;

* Jower environmental impact;

* ability to expand plant capacity; and

¢ rapid start-up and shutdown time.

Gas turbine power plants can have either a simple-cycle or combined-cycle configuration, both of which utilize a gas turbine and a
generator to produce electricity. A simple-cycle gas turbine plant incorporates many of the products we manufacture, including filter houses,
inlet and exhaust systems and turbine enclosures. A simple-cycle plant converts approximately 33% of the fuel's energy content into
electricity. A combined-cycle plant has the same components as a simple-cycle plant, with the addition of a heat recovery steam generator, or
HRSG. in a combined-cycle plant, the hot exhaust from the gas turbine is routed through the HRSG where steam is generated which is used to
power a steam turbine and produce more electricity. Like the simple-cycle plant, the combined-cycle plant also incorporates many of the
products that we manufacture. A combined-cycle power plant converts up to 58% or more of the fuel's energy content into electricity. As a
result of the general availability of natura! gas supplies, lower capital costs, environmental factors and increased efficiency, the EIA projects
that gas-fired technology will outpace all other competing technologies through 2030. As a leading provider of equipment for simple- and
combined-cycle power plants, we are well positioned to benefit from these trends.

Products and Services

We conduct our business through two operating segments: our heat recovery equipment segment and our auxiliary power equipment segment.
We offer a broad range of products that are integral parts of gas turbine power plants as well as power-related equipment for industria!
operations. We also provide advanced engineering, retrofit and upgrade, maintenance and repair services to the power generation industry.
For more information regarding our revenues, profitability and total assets by segment, see Note 13 1o our consolidated financial statements
included in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K.

Heat Recovery Equipment Segment. Our heat recovery equipment segment is a leader in the production of HRSGs and specialty boilers. Our
products in this segment are marketed under the Deltak brand name.

* Heat Recovery Steam Generators. An HRSG is a bailer that creates steam in a combined-cycle power plant using the hot exhaust
emitted by a gas turbine. This steam generates additional electricity by driving a steam turbine in a combined-cycle power plant. Each HRSG is
custom designed and engineered to meet the specifications of the customer, taking into account the type of gas turbine and environmental
iocale. We design and manufacture HRSGs for all size applications for both new combined-cycle and retrofitted simple-cycle power plants.
We believe we are the overall market leader with the largest installed base of gas turbine HRSGs in the world.

* Specialty Boilers and Related Products. Specialty boilers are a highly customized class of equipment that capture waste heat and
convert it into steam. We produce specialty boilers used in process heat recovery and incineration systems, small power generation systems
and marine co-generation systems. Qur specialty boilers, which require creative engineering solutions, are used in a wide range of markets,
including oil and gas. pulp and paper, chemicals, petrachemical, marine and food industries. We have an installed base of more than 500
specialty boilers in over 30 countries. In addition, we design and manufacture catalytic recovery systems for gas turbine exhaust systems
which reduce emissions.
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Auxiliary Power Equipment Segment. Cur auxiliary power equipment segment includes a variety of products and services critical to the
operation of gas turbine power plants. These products are marketed under the Braden and Consolidated Fabricators brand names.
* Filter Houses. A filter house cleans debris, dirt and other contaminants from the air that enters the turbine, using either a barrier
filter or a pulse filter. Barrier filters use a series of filter elements contained in a large filter house to remove airborne contaminants.
Pulse filters are self-cleaning filters that use a blast of air to expel dirt or ice from the filter element. In addition, a filter house may
include evaporative coolers, chiller coils, fog coaling systems, anti-icing systems and a broad range of other equipment that treats
the air that is pulled through the turbine.

* /nlet Systems. Inlet systems are large air intake ducts that connect the filter house to the gas turbine and provide silencing for the
noise emanating from the gas turbine through the inlet. The major compeonents of an inlet system are inlet silencers, expansion joints
and inlet ductwork.

e (3as and Steam Turbine Enclosures. Gas and steam turbine enclosures protect the turbines from the environment. In addition, they
provide acoustical treatment to reduce the noise produced by gas and steam turbines. Fire suppression systems are also an integral
feature of most enclosures.

o fxhaust Systems. Exhaust systems direct the hot exhaust from the turbine to the atmosphere. The main components of an exhaust
system are exhaust ductwork, acoustic silencing equipment and the stack. Exhaust systems are highly engineered and very complex
due to the severe turbulence and heat exposure that they must endure.

* Diverter Dampers. Diverter dampers divert the hot exhaust from the gas turbine into a HRSG when the power plant is operated as a
combined-cycle facility or into the exhaust stack in the case of simple-cycle operation. We also design and manufacture various
other types of dampers.

Backlog

The time frame between receipt of an order and actual completion or delivery of our products can stretch from a few weeks to a year or more.
At the time we receive an arder representing a commitment from a customer, that order is added to our backlog. Our backlog consists of firm
orders from our customers for projects in progress. Backlog may vary significantly quarter to quarter due to the timing of custemer commit-
ments. During fiscal year 2003, we removed bookings of approximately $35 million, with less than $1 million removed in the fourth quarter.
Cancellation fees and revenue recognition have normaily exceeded our out-of-pocket costs on the projects removed.

Sales and Marketing

We have an extensive sales network consisting of employees and independent representatives worldwide. We have sales offices in Brazil,
China, Egypt, the Netherlands, Singapore, South Korea and the United States. Our internaticnal sales force allows us to assess local market
conditions, utilize local contacts and respond quickly to our customers’ regional needs. We focus our sales and marketing efforts on end users
of our products, including the developers and operators of gas turbine power plants, and on gas turbine original equipment manufacturers
{OEM) who may order our products directly or specify the use of our products.

Customers

Customers for both our heat recovery equipment segment and our auxiliary power equipment segment include OEMs, engineering and con-
struction firms, operators of power generation facilities and firms engaged across several process related industries. The end users of most of
our products are developers and operators of gas turbine power plants. Our top ten customers vary from year to year due to the relative size
and duration of our projects. The Company has certain customers that represent more than 10 percent of consclidated revenues. The revenues
far these customers, as well as corresponding accounts receivable, as a percentage of the consolidated revenues and accounts receivable
balances, for 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Revenues Accounts Receivable
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
General Electric 32% 35% 25% 27% 9% 24%
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries 4% 5% 16% 6% 18% 1%
The Southern Company 7% 14% 11% 0% 0% 0%
ExxonMobil 10% 1% 0% 9% 0% 0%

For information with respect to our sales by geographic regions, see Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements included in “Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K.
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Engineering and Design Capabilities

Our business is driven by design and engineering expertise, an area in which we believe we are an industry leader. Our products are custom-
designed and engineered to meet the precise specifications of our customers, and may require a significant number of engineering hours to
design. As of December 27, 2003, we employed 105 degreed engineers specialized in thermal, structural, electrical, mechanical, acoustical,
industrial and chemical engineering. Our engineers utilize an extensive PC-based network and engineering programs such as AutoCad™,
ANSYS™, StruCAD™ and several internally developed proprietary programs. Our proprietary programs enable us to use design elements from
previous projects thereby increasing our engineering efficiency on subsequent projects.

Manufacturing and Outsourcing
Our products are fabricated utilizing a combination of in-house manufacturing and subcontractors. Most of our subcontracting work is
performed outside the United States which provides a lower-cost basis for finished goods. Our extensive use of outsourcing relationships
provides us the following benefits:
» flexibility to rapidly expand or contract manufacturing capacity which limits our capital expenditure requirements and fixed expenses;
 ability to manufacture in fow cost countries, thereby reducing the overall cost of cur products; and
¢ ability to satisfy local content requirements.

In fiscal year 2003, subcontractors accounted for approximately 83% of cur manufacturing costs. Qur subcontractors manufacture
products on a fixed-price basis for each project. Typically, our subcontractors agree not to manufacture competing products. We provide on-site
technical advisors at our subcontracted facilities to ensure high tevels of quality and workmanship. We are constantly pursuing new interna-
tional subcontractor relationships to enhance our ability to manufacture equipment at the lowest cost while maintaining high-quality standards
and on-time delivery.

While a majority of our manufacturing is outsourced, we maintain significant in-house capabilities. Our in-house manufacturing
capability allows us to internally develop production methods, train personnel, protect highly sensitive designs and fabricate products whose
complexity may preclude their production by subcontractors.

Segment Financial Data and Sales by Geographic Region
See Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, included in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10K,
for detailed financial information regarding each business segment and sales by geographic region.

Raw Materials and Suppliers

The principal raw materials for our products are stainless steel sheet products, carbon steel plate and structural shapes, insulation and
finned tubing. We obtain these products from a number of domestic and foreign suppliers. The market for most of the raw materials we use
is comprised of numerous participants, and we believe that we can obtain each of the raw materials we require from more than one supplier.

Competition

We compete with a large number of U.S. and international companies alang all of our major product lines. We compete based on the price,
guality, refiability and reputation of our products. We believe that no single competitor offers our breadth of products to the gas turbine power
generation industry.

Employees

As of December 27, 2003, we had 943 employees. Other than 3 of our remaining manufacturing employess located in Tuisa, Oklahoma and
290 of our production employees at our two facilities in Mexico, none of our employees are represented by unions. We believe our employee
relations are satisfactory.
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Intellectual Property
We depend upon a combination of patents, trademarks and nondisclosure and confidentiality agreements with our employees, customers and
others as well as various security measures to protect our propristary rights. Designs and processes are developed for specific projects and
are charged directly to such projects. Due to the unique nature of each project, we typically create new designs specifically for each project.
Also, our customers are contractually obligated to treat these designs as confidential and proprietary. For these reasons, we do not generally
pursue patent protection. However, we believe that intellectual property protection is less important than our ability to continue to develop
new design applications that meet the demands of our customers. As a result, we do not believe that any single patent or trademark is
material to our business.

We typically enter into non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements with our employees and subcontractors with access to sensitive
design software and technology. However, this protection does not preclude others from creating programs which perform the same function.
In addition, our agreements may be breached and we may not have adequate remedies for any breach.

Environmental Matters

Qur operations are subject to laws and regulations governing the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the
protection of the environment or human health. These laws include U.S. federal statutes such as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
of 1976, the Comprehensive Environment Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1880, or CERCLA, the Clean Water Act and the Clean
Air Act, and the regulations implementing them, as well as similar laws and regulations at the state and local levels and in other countries in
which we operate.

Failure to comply with environmental laws or regulations could subject us to significant liabilities for fines, penalties or damages, or
result in the denial or loss of significant operating permits. In addition, some environmental laws, including CERCLA, impose liability for the
costs of investigating and remediating releases of hazardous substances without regard to fault and on a joint and several basis, so that in
some circumstances we may be liable for costs attributable to hazardous substances released into the environment by others.

Our manufacturing facilities use and produce wastes containing various substances classified as hazardous or otherwise regulated
under environment laws and regulations, and are subject to ongoing compliance costs and capital expenditure requirements. We believe we
are in compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations and that the costs of compliance are not material to us. However, any
newly discovered environmental conditions could result in unanticipated expenses or liabilities that could be material. Moreaver, the environ-
mental laws and regulations to which we are subject are constantly changing, and it is impossible to predict the effect of these changes on
us. We cannot give any assurances that our operations will comply with future laws and regulations or that these laws and regulations will
not significantly adversely affect us.

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.globalpower.com. We make available, free of charge through our website, our annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after such documents are electronically filed
with, or furnished to, the SEC.

Risk Factors
Our business, financial condition and results of operations may be impacted by a number of factars, including, but not limited to, the following,
any of which could cause actual results to vary materially from historical and current results or anticipated future results.

Substantially all of our revenues are from sales of equipment for gas turbine power plants. During periods of declining construction of new gas
turbine power plants, the market for our products is significantly diminished. The demand for our products and services depends on the
continued construction of gas turbine power generation plants. In fiscal year 2003, approximately 87% of our revenues were from sales of
equipment and provision of services for gas turbine power plants. The power generation equipment industry has experienced cyclical periods
of slow growth or decline. In periods of decreased demand for new gas turbine power plants, our customers may be more likely to decrease
expenditures on the types of products and systems that we supply and, as a result, our future revenues may decrease. In addition, the gas
turbine power industry depends on natural gas. A rise in the price or a shortage of natural gas could affect the profitability or operations of
gas turbine power plants, which could adversely affect our future revenues.
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Environmental faws and regulations have played a part in the increased use of gas turbine technology in various jurisdictions. These
laws and regulations may change or other jurisdictions may not adopt similar laws and regulations. Changes in existing laws and regulations
could result in a reduction in the building and refurbishment of gas turbine power plants. In addition, stricter environmental regulation could
result in our customers seeking new ways of generating electricity that do not require the use of our products. Furthermore, although gas
turbine power plants have lower emissians than coal-fired power plants, emissions from gas turbine power plants remain a concern and
attempts to reduce or regulate emissions could increase the cost of gas turbine power plants and result in our customers’ switching to
alternative sources of power.

Other current power technologies, improvements to these technologies and new alternative power technologies that compete or may
‘compete in the future with gas turbine power plants could affect our sales and profitability. Furthermore, in fiscal year 2003, approximately
45% of our revenues were from sales of heat recavery equipment used in combined-cycle power plants. Any change in the power generation
industry which results in a decline in the construction of new combined-cycle power plants or a decline in the upgrading of existing simple-
cycle power plants to combined-cycle power plants could materially adversely affect our sales.

Because some of our contracts stipulate that customer progress payments be made in advance of work performed, increases in overall
sales volume typically allow us to finance our business through these payments. Conversely, a prolonged decline in new bookings of sales that
provide for progress payments, or, if due to competitive market conditions we elect to extend progress payment schedules, our ability to
finance work from operating sources may be affected resulting in & reduction in operating cash flows.

A small number of major customers account for a significant portion of our revenues, and the loss of any of these customers could negatively
impact our business. We depend on a relatively small number of customers for a significant portion of our revenues. In fiscal year 2001, three
customers accounted for approximately 52% of our consclidated revenues. In fiscal year 2002, two customers accounted for approximately
49% of our consolidated revenues. In fiscal year 2003, two customers accounted for approximately 42% of our consolidated revenues and
approximately 33% of our backlog at the end of the year. In addition, our five largest customers accounted for approximately 62% of our
revenues in fiscal year 2003 and approximately 54% of our backlog at the end of the year. Other than their obligations under firm orders placed
in our backlog, none of our customers have a long-term contractual obligation to purchase any material amounts of products from us. All of our
firm orders contain cancellation provisions, which permit us to recover only our costs and a portion of our anticipated profit in the event a
customer cancels its order. If a customer elects to cancel, we may not reglize the full amount of future revenues included in our backlog. We
expect to continue to depend upon a relatively small number of customers for a significant percentage of our revenues. Because our major
customers represent a large part of our business, the loss of any of cur major customers could negatively impact our business and results

of operations.

If our costs exceed the estimates we use to set the fixed prices of our contracts, our earnings will be reduced. \We enter into nearly all of our
contracts on a fixed-price basis. As a result, we benefit from cost savings, but have limited ability to recover any cost overruns. Contract prices
are established based in part on our projected costs, which are subject to a number of assumptions. The costs that we incur in connection
with each contract can vary, sometimes substantially, from our original projections. Because of the large scale and long duration of our con-
tracts, unanticipated changes may occur, such as customer budget decisions, design changes, delays in receiving permits and cost increases,
which may delay delivery of our products. In addition, we often are contractually subject to liquidated damages for late delivery.
Unanticipated cost increases or delays may occur as a result of several factars, including:

* increases in the cost, or shortages, of components, materials or labor;

¢ unanticipated technical problems;

= required project modifications not initiated by the customer; and

e suppliers’ or subcontractors’ failure to perform.

Given the rapid economic growth in China and Southeast Asia, material prices have increased sharply and may continue to increase in the
future. Our ability to recover these cost increases from our customers on our current and future orders may be limited.

Cost increases or overruns that we cannot pass on to our customers or our payment of liquidated damages under our contracts will lower
our earnings.

PAGE 19




Competition could result in decreased sales or decreased prices for our products and services. We face and will continue to face significant
competition for the sale of our products and services. Competition could result in a reduction in the demand for, or the prices that we can
charge for, our products and services. Our success is dependent in farge part on our ability to:
e anticipate or respand quickly to our customers’ needs and enhance and upgrade our existing products and services to meet those
needs;
e continue to price our products and services competitively and find low cost subcontractors that can produce quality products; and
¢ develop new products and systems that are accepted by our customers and differentiated from our competitors’ offerings.

Our competitors may:

* develop more desirable, efficient, environmentally friendly or less expensive products;

¢ be willing to accept lower prices to protect strategic marketing positions or increase market share;
* be better able to take advantage of acquisition opportunities; or

¢ adapt more quickly to changes in customer requirements.

As a result of our competitors’ business practices, we may need to lower our prices and/or devote significant resources to marketing
our products in order to remain competitive. Lower prices and/or higher costs would reduce our revenues and our profitability.

If we are unable to control the quality or timely production of preducts manufactured for us by subcontractors, our reputation could be adverse-
ly affected and we could lose customers. If we are unable to recover any advance progress payments made to subcontractors, our profitahility
would be adversely affected. We rely on subcontractors to manufacture and assemble a substantial portion of our products. In fiscal year 2003,
subcontractors accounted for approximately 83% of our manufacturing costs. Although we have an-site supervision of our subcontractors to
review and maonitor their quality control systems, the quality and timing of their production is not totally under our control. Qur subcontractors
may not always meet the level of quality control and the delivery schedules required by our customers. The failure of our subcontractors to
produce guality products in a timely manner could adversely affect our reputation and result in the cancellation of orders for our products and
the loss of customers.

In addition, we make advance progress payments to subcontractors in anticipation of their completion of our orders. We may be unable
to recover those advances in the event a subcontractor fails to complete an order, which may adversely affect our profitability.

The dollar amount of our backlog, as stated at any time, is not necessarily indicative of our future earnings. When we receive a firm order for a
project from a customer, that order is added to our backlog. However, customers may cancel or delay projects for reasons beyond our control
and we may be unable to replace any canceled orders with new orders. To the extent projects were delayed, the timing of our revenues could
be affected. If a customer cancels an order, we may be reimbursed for the incurred costs. Typically, however, we have no contractual right to
the full amount of the revenues that we would have received if the order had not been canceled, which potential revenues are reflected in our
backlog. In addition, projects may remain in our backlog for extended periods of time. Revenue recognition occurs over extended periods of
time and is subject to unanticipated delays. Fluctuations in our quarterly backlog levels also result from the fact that we may receive a small
number of relatively large orders in any given quarter that may be included in our backlog. Because of these large orders, our backlog in that
guarter may reach levels that may not be sustained in subsequent quarters. Our backlog, therefore, is not necessarily indicative of our future
revenues.

Our future revenues and operating results may vary significantly from quarter to quarter. Our quarterly revenues and earnings have varied in the
past and are likely to vary in the future. Our contracts stipulate customer-specific delivery terms which, coupled with other factors beyand our
contral that may occur at any time over a contract cycle of up to a year or more, may result in uneven realization of revenues and earnings over
time. Customer-imposed delays can significantly impact the timing of revenue recognition. Due to our large average contract size, our sales
volume during any given period may be concentrated in relatively few orders, intensifying the magnitude of these fluctuations. Consequently,
our guarterly performance may not be indicative of our success in achieving year-over-year growth objectives. Furthermore, some of our
operating costs are fixed. As a result, we may have limited ability to reduce our operating costs in response to unanticipated decreases in our
revenues or the demand for our products in any given quarter. Therefore, our operating results in any quarter may not be indicative of qur
future performance. In addition, because we must make significant estimates related to patential charges when we recognize revenue on a
percentage of completion basis, we may have difficulty accurately estimating revenues and profits from quarter to quarter.
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Compliance with environmental laws and regulations is costly, and our ongoing operations may expose us to environmental liabilities. Qur
operations are subject to laws and regulations governing the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the protec-
tion of the environment or human health and safety. As discussed on page 7, “Environmental Matters,” we are subject to various U.S. federal
statutes and the regulations implementing them, as well as similar laws and regulatians at the state and local levels and in other countries in
which we operate.

If we fail to comply with environmental laws or regulations, we may be subject to significant liabilities for fines, penalties or damages,
or lose or be denied significant operating permits. In addition, some environmental laws, including CERCLA, impose liability for the costs of
investigating and remediating releases of hazardous substances without regard to fault and on a joint and several basis, so that in some
circumstances we may be liable for costs attributable to hazardous substances reieased into the environment by athers. Moreover, the
environmental laws and regulations to which we are subject are constantly changing, and we cannot predict the effect of these changes on us.

A defect in our products could result in unanticipated warranty costs or product liability not cavered by our insurance, which could adversely
affect our financial condition or results of operations. We generally provide warranties for terms of three years or less on our products. These
warranties require us to repair or replace faulty products. Warranty claims could result in significant unanticipated costs. The need to repair or
replace products with design or manufacturing defects could also tempoararily delay the sale of new products and adversely affect our reputation.

In addition, we may be subject to product liability claims invelving claims of personal injury or property damage. Because our products
are used primarily in power plants, claims could arise in different contexts, including the following:

o fires, explosions and power surges that can resuit in significant property damage or personal injury; and

e equipment failure that can result in personal injury or damage to other equipment in the power plant.

If a very large product liability claim were sustained, our insurance caverage might not be adequate to cover our defense costs and the
amount awarded. Additionally, a well-publicized actual or perceived problem could adversely affect our reputation and reduce demand for gur
products.

The restrictions and covenants contained in our amended and restated senior credit facility limit our ability to borrow additional money, sell
assets and make acquisitions. Compliance with these restrictions and cavenants may limit our ability to implement elements of our business
strategy. Our amended and restated senior credit facility contains a number of significant restrictions and covenants limiting our ability and
that of our subsidiaries to:

¢ borrow more money or make capital expenditures;

* incur liens;
pay dividends or make other restricted payments;
merge or sell assets;
enter into transactions with affiliates; and

* make acquisitions.

In addition, our amended and restated senior credit facility contains other restrictive covenants, including covenants that require us to
maintain specified financial ratios, including leverage, interest and fixed charge ratios and mandatory repayment provisions that will require us
to repay our indebtedness with proceeds from certain asset sales, certain debt issuances and certain insurance casualty events. If we are
unable to service our indebtedness, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assets, restructure or refinance our indebt-
edness or seek additional equity capital. Also, compliance with the restrictive covenants of our amended and restated senior credit facility may
limit our ability to operate our business or implement elements of our business strategy.

Our revenues would be adversely affected if we are unable to protect the proprietary design software programs that we use in our business.
We have developed several proprietary software programs to help us design our products. Our ability to protect our proprietary rights to these
programs is impaortant to our success. We protect these rights through the use of internal contrals and confidentiality and non-disclosure
agreements and other legal protections. The legal protections afforded to our proprietary rights and the precautions we have taken may not be
adequate to prevent misappropriation of our proprietary rights. We generally enter into non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements with our
employees and subcontractors with access to sensitive design software and technology. However, these contractual protections do not prevent
independent third-parties from develaping functicnally equivalent or superior technologies, programs, products or professional services. Third-
parties may also infringe upon or misappropriate our proprietary rights and use them to develop competing products. If we were required to
commence legal actions to enforce our intellectual property or proprietary rights or to defend ourselves against claims that we are infringing
on the intellectual property or proprietary rights of others, we could incur substantial costs and divert management's attention from operations.
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The loss of the services of our key executive officers could have a negative effect on our business. Our success depends ta a significant extent
on the cantinued services of Larry Edwards, our chief executive officer, president and chairman of the board, and Monte Ness and Gene
Schackemoehl, twa of our senior executives. Qur failure to retain the services of Messrs. Edwards, Ness or Schockemoehl, or attract highly
qualified management in the future, could adversely affect our ability to grow and manage our operations. Although we have employment
agreements containing non-competition clauses with Messrs. Edwards, Ness and Schockemoehl, courts are sometimes reluctant to enforce
these agreements. In addition, although we carry key man life insurance for Messrs. Edwards and Schockemoehl, the loss of their services
could disrupt our operations.

A failure to attract and retain employees who fill key requirements of our business may make it difficult to sustain or expand operations. We
must attract and retain highly qualified experienced mechanical, design, structural and software engineers, service technicians, marketing and
sales personnel and other key personnel to expand our operations. If we are unable to attract and retain necessary personnel, we may not be
able to sustain or expand our operations.

We may not be able to maintain or expand our business outside the United States because of numerous risk factors outside our contref. Qur
international operations are subject to a number of risks inherent in doing business outside the United States, inciuding:
¢ |abor unrest;
« regional economic uncertainty;
¢ political instability;
e restrictions on the transfer of funds inta ar out of a country,
currency exchange rate fluctuations;
e export duties and quotas;
* expropriations;
¢ domestic and foreign customs and tariffs;
¢ current and changing regulatory environments;
e potentially adverse tax consequences; and
* availability of financing.

These factars may result in a decline in ravenues or profitability and could adversely affect our ability to expand our business outside
the United States.

Increased operations in China and Seutheast Asia could adversely impact our operating margins. We have commenced a strategic initiative
to increase the amount of products and services that we sell in China and Southeast Asia. While the economic outlook for power generation
projects in that region of the world appears more favorable than the current market in the United States, we have no assurance that our
strategy will be successful in obtaining significant increases in revenue. In addition to the risks associated with operations outside the United
States noted previously, there are numerous additional challenges to doing business in China, such as strict tax and operating regulations. In
addition, the Chinese legal system is relatively new, and the Chinese central and local government authorities retain a greater degree of
control aver business operations than is customary in more developed countries, making the process of obtaining regulatory approval for
business operations inherently unpredictable in some circumstances. We are currently developing our strategies for best overcoming the
challenges we face for successfully increasing our presence in China. However, our gross profit margin for sales in China may be negatively
impacted if we are unable to resolve some of these issues.

If we were required to write-off our goodwill or long-lived assets or place a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, our results of
operations and stockholders’ equity could be materially adversely affected. As a result of our June 1998 acquisition of the power generation
division of Jason Incorporated and our Octaber 2000 acquisition of CFl Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries, we have approximately $45.0 million
of goodwill recorded on our consclidated balance sheet as of December 27, 2003. Due to the implementation of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill is no langer amortized but must be tested for impairment
at least annually based on a fair value concept.

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and intangible assets, are evaluated for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable through the estimated undiscounted future cash flows
from the use of these assets.

Realization of the deferred tax assets is based on the ability of the Company to generate enough future taxable income. At some point
in the future, the Company may decide that its future taxable income will not be sufficient in order to utilize the deferred tax assets. If this
determination were made, the Company would place a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets.

If we were required to write-off our goodwill or long-lived assets or place a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets, our
results of operations and financial position could be materially adversely affected.
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We are exposed to market risks from changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. \We are subject to market risks from
changes in interest rates. Our amended and restated senior credit facility’s variable-rate debt bears interest, at our option, at either the
Eurodollar rate or an alternate base rate plus, in each case, an applicable margin. Assuming our current level of borrowings, a 100 basis point
increase in interest rates under these barrowings would increase our interast expense for fiscal year 2004 by approximately $0.3 miltion.

We are also subject to market risks from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Portions of our operations are located in
foreign jurisdictions and a portion of our billings are paid in foreign currencies. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates or weak economic
conditions in foreign markets could therefore cause fluctuations in those revenues derived from foreign operations. In addition, sales of

products and services are affected by the value of the U.S. dollar relative to other currencies. Changes in foreign currency rates can also
affect the costs of our products purchased or manufactured outside the United States.

[TEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our executive offices currently occupy 10,870 square feet in Tulsa, Oklahoma. The lease for this facility expires in October 2004. We have
6 other U.S. facilities, as well as facilities in the Netherlands and Mexico. Information about our material facilities at December 27, 2003 is
described below:

Leased / Owned
Location Square Feet (Expiration Date) Principal Uses
Heat Recavery Equipment Segment
Plymouth, Minnesota 44,469 leased (9/30/09) Engineering and administrative office
92,000 leased (01/31/06) Manufacturing
84,900 owned Manufacturing
Auxiliary Power Equipment Segment
Auburn, Massachusetts 69,000 owned Manufacturing, engineering and
administrative office
Clinton, South Carclina 71,000 owned Manufacturing and engineering
Heerlen, The Netherlands 10,000 leased (10/31/04) Engineering
Monterrey, Mexico 100,000 owned Manufacturing
Toluca, Mexico 60,000 leased {05/01/04) Manufacturing
Tulsa, Oklahoma 160,000 leased (08/31/11) Manufacturing, engineering and

administrative office

The Company leases an approximately 400 square foot office in the Waigaogiao free trade zone located in the Pudong New District of
Shanghai. During 2004, the Company has leased an additional 3,000 square feet of office space in the Changning District of Shanghai. Both
leases expire in March 2005.

in addition to the foregoing, the Company leases other facilities in various cities, which are not considered material. The Company
considers each of its facilities to be in good operating condition and sufficient for its current use.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On June 3, 2003, Stone & Webster, Inc. and Stone & Webster Purchasing, Inc. (collectively, “S&W") commenced a lawsuit in the U.S. District
Court for the Southern District of lowa Central Division, against Deltak, L.L.C. {Deltak), one of our subsidiaries. S&W alleges Deltak committed
breach of contract and warranty and made certain intentional misrepresentations in connection with a contract to provide two heat recovery
steam generators for a project in which S&W was the general contractor. S&W alleges it incurred significant cost increases and delays on the
project resulting from certain design, constructability and fabrication issues related to the heat recovery steam generators provided by Deltak,
and S&W is seeking an unspecified amount of damages for costs. We believe we have meritorious defenses to the allegations and intend to
defend this action vigarously. In addition, Deltak has filed counterclaims against S&W alleging, among other things, breach of contract and
unjust enrichment. The ultimate impact of this matter on the consolidated financial position or results of operations cannot be determined at
this time.

We are subject to routine litigation arising out of the normal and ordinary operation of our business, which we believe will not result in
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

We did not submit any matters to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter ended December 27, 2003.

ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth as of the date hereof certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company. Officers are elected
annually by the Board of Directors and serve at its discretion.

Name Age Position

Larry Edwards 54 Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board

Mante Ness 47 Senior Vice President and President, Deltak

Gene Schockemaghl 54 Senior Vice President, President, Braden and President, Consolidated Fabricators
James Wilson 44 Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Finance

John Matheson 38 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Larry Edwards is our chief executive officer, president and chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. Edwards was appointed chairman of
the Board of Directors in October 2003. Since June 1998, Mr. Edwards has served as a director of and chief executive officer of GPEG and its
predecessor and as president and chief executive officer of GEEG, Inc. From February 1994 until June 1998, Mr. Edwards served as the presi-
dent of Jason Incorporated’s power generation division, the predecessor of GEEG Holdings, L.L.C. From 1976 until 1994, Mr. Edwards held the
following positions with Braden: systems analyst; manager of data processing; manager of management services; manager of purchasing and
traffic; manager of operations; vice president of operations; general manager; and president of Braden. Mr. Edwards earned a B.S. in Industrial
Engineering and Management from Oklahoma State University and an M.B.A. with honors fram Oklahoma City University.

Monie Ness is our senior vice-president and Deltak president. Mr. Ness joined Deltak in 1986 as marketing manager. In 1993, he was
promoted to vice president of the Gas Turbine Heat Recovery praduct line, and in October 2003, he was promoted to president. Before working
at Deltak, Mr. Ness worked at Brown Boveri Turbomachinery and at Garrett Turbine Engine Company in the aircraft propulsion group. Mr. Ness
is a 1979 graduate of North Dakota State University with dual bachelor degrees in Mechanical Engineering and Business Administration. Mr.
Ness also received an MBA degree specializing in {nternational Business from Arizona State University in 1986 and completed the Minnescta
Management Institute through the Carlson School of Management at the University of Minnesota in 1993.

Gene Schockemoehl is our senior vice president and president of Braden and Consolidated Fabricatars. Mr. Schockemoeh! has served as
president of Braden since January 1994 and was appointed as the president of Consolidated Fabricators in October 2003. Mr. Schockemoehl
previously served as vice president and director of GPEG's predecessor from June 1998 to May 2001. He began his employment at Braden in
1968, progressing through the plant production area into management positions, and served as plant superintendent and manager of manufac-
turing through 1985. In mid-1985, Mr. Schockemoehl became operations manager and in 1990 became vice president of aperations. He served
as vice president of sales from mid-1991 until January 1994. Mr. Schockemoehl has a manufacturing and general business educational back-
ground, having attended both Tulsa Community College and Rogers State College.

James Wilson is our chief financial officer and vice president of finance. Mr. Wilson served GPEG and its predecessor as secretary from
June 1998 until 2001 and as vice president of administration from September 2000 unti! December 2003 when he became chief financial offi-
cer and vice president of finance. He joined Braden in 1986 as controiler and became vice president of finance, Braden in 1989 where he
served untit September 2000. Between 1982 and 1986, Mr. Wilson was employed as a senior auditor with Arthur Andersen LLP. Mr. Wilson
has received the C.PA. designation and has been a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1983. He eamed a
B.S. in Accounting from Oral Roberts University.
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John Matheson is our vice president, general counsel and secretary. Prior to joining our company, from 1999 to 2001, Mr. Matheson
served as senior attorney for The Williams Companies, an international energy and telecommunications company, where he directed the
business development legal group of Williams Communications, which was responsible for mergers, acquisitions and securities law matters.
Prior to 1999, he was a shareholder with the faw firm of Conner & Winters, P.C., in Tulsa, Oklahoma. From January 1988 to May 1989, he was a
tax consultant with Price Waterhouse. Mr. Matheson has received the C.P.A. designation and holds a bachelor of accountancy degree, with
highest honors, from the University of Oklahoma, and a juris doctor from Georgetown University Law Center.

PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

Our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "GEG" on May 18, 2001, following completion of our
initial public offering {IPQ). The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices per share of our commaon stock, as reported in the New
Yark Stock Exchange composite transactions, for the periods indicated:

Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
High Low High Low
First Quarter $5.87 $4.70 $15.54 $8.60
Second Quarter $642 $4.61 $12.49 $8.49
Third Quarter $6.05 $4.65 $10.05 $3.90
Fourth Quarter $6.79 $5.07 $ 553 $374

A majority of the Company’s stockholders maintain their shares in “street name” accounts and are not, individually, stockholders of
record. As of March 3, 2004, our common stock was held by 71 shareholders of record.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock and currently intend to retain all earnings for use in our business. Accordingly, we
do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The declaration of dividends is at the discretion of our Board of Directors.
Any future determination as to payment of dividends will depend upon our financial condition and results of operations and such other factors
as are deemed relevant by the Board of Directors.

QOur ability to pay cash dividends or make other distributions is subject to certain limitations under the terms of our current amended
and restated senior credit facility. See “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Liquidity and Capital Resources,” and Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements included in “Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this Farm 10-K.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected historical consolidated financial data of Global Power Equipment Group Inc. as of the dates indicated.
The financial data for fiscal years 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements.
Such data should be read in conjunction with “Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year
{in thousands, except per common share data) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Resuits of Operation Data:
Revenues $ 263,778 $ 586,805 $ 723,504 $ 416,591 $275,199
Cost of sales 192,281 455,338 591,958 345,688 226,051
Gross profit 71,497 131,466 131,546 70,903 49,148
Selling and administrative expenses 38,083 42,212 40,333 27,045 23,166
Recapitalization charge™ — — - 38114 —
Amortization expense — — 1,716 1,250 1,100
Operating income 33.414 89,254 89,487 4,494 24,882
Interest expense 1,504 4210 15.896 12,175 3.410
Income {loss) before income taxes and extraordinary loss 31,910 85,044 73,601 (7.681) 21,472
Income tax provision (benefit) 12,126 33,167 22,905 (433) 1,087
Incame tax benefit from tax status change @ — — (88,000) — —
Income {loss) before extraordinary loss 19,784 51,877 138,696 (7,248) 20,385
Extraordinary loss on debt extinguishment, net of tax — — {18,060) {1,538) —
Income (loss) 19,784 51,877 120,636 (8,784) 20,385
Preferred stock dividend — — (2,947) (3.386) (420)
Net income {loss) available to common stockholders § 19,784 3 51877 $ 117,689 § (12.170) § 19,965
Per Common Share Data ®*;
Earnings (loss) per comman share:
Basic income {loss) per common share
Income (loss) aefore extraordinary item $ 0.44 $ 118 $ 3.46 $  {0.03) $ 003
Extraordinary item — — (0.46) — —
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders 3 0.44 $ 1.18 g 3.00 $  {0.03) $§ 003
Diluted income (lcss) per common share
Income (loss) oefore extraordinary item $ 0.43 $ 1.14 $ 3.31 $ {0.03) $ 003
Extraordinary item — — (0.44) — —
Net income {loss) available ta common
stockholders $ 0.43 $ 1.14 $ 2.87 §  {0.03) $§ 003
Weighted average commaon shares outstanding:
Basic 44,521 43,959 39,275 388,456 833,417
Diluted 45911 45,636 41,011 388,456 788,176
Other Financial Data:
Depreciation and amartization $ 4202 $§ 4625 § 6.684 $ 431 $ 3126
Capital expenditures 41 2,869 11,559 2,187 2,375
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities 24,381 103,088 12,018 24,789 39,466
Investing activities 195 (2,661} (11,559) {(19,840) 1.393
Financing activities (34,667} {45,548) (24,332) 10,246 (39,469 )
Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):
Property, plant and equipment, net 20,740 25,468 27,810 19,433 15,071
Total assets 280,996 369,704 430,631 245,893 131,493
Total debt 24,963 60,073 105,629 219,094 27.421

(1) In fiscal year 2000, we incurred a non-recurring recapitalization charge associated with the cancellation of aptions outstanding as of the closing date of the August 2000 recapitalization.

(Z] Due to the Company's change in tax status from a limited liabifity company (LLC) to a taxable entity on the date of its (PO, the Company was required to recard alf deferred tax assets and liabilities,
which were previously the responsibility of the LLC members. As a result, the Company recorded a net deferred tax asset on the date of the reorganization of approximately $88.0 million and recorded

3 corresponding $88.0 million income tax benafit,

{3) Income (loss) before extraordinary item per common share is calculated by dividing income before extraordinary item after adjusting for preferred dividends by the weighted-average number of common
units outstanding during each period. Preferred dividends were §0.4 miltion, $3.4 million and $2.9 million for fiscal years 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively. No preferred dividends were paid in 2002

and 2003.

{4)  The share and per sharz amounts for 1999 and 2000 are not comparable to the other years presented as the weighted average common shares outstanding for 1999 and 2000 do not reflect the

conversion of the common units to common shares at a ratio of 26.1 to 1.0.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The fallowing discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the selected consolidated
financial data and consolidated financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview
We design, engineer and fabricate a comprehensive portfolio of heat recovery and auxiliary power equipment and provide refated services. We
conduct our business through two operating segments: our Heat Recovery Equipment segment and our Auxiliary Power Equipment segment.

The demand for our products and services depends, to a significant degree, on the level of construction of gas turbine power generation
plants. In fiscal year 2003, approximately 87% of our revenues were from sales of equipment and provision of services for gas turbine power
plants. The power generation equipment industry has experienced cyclical periods of growth or decline. Liquidity concerns in 2002 and continu-
ing through 2003 in the merchant power production sector have reduced the availability of financing for power plant development in the United
States and have caused the market for our products to significantly decline. While industry forecasts indicate a substantiaf long-term need for
additional gas-fired power plants on a world-wide basis, the significant decline in domestic demand for such plants in 2002 and 2003 has
negatively impacted our bookings and revenues. We anticipate that increasing demand for new power piants outside the United States will
continue and, accordingly, we have placed additional focus on increasing our business outside the United States, particularly in China and
Southeast Asia.

During fiscal year 2003, we focused our efforts on maintaining profitability despite the decrease in revenues.These efforts included
closing one manufacturing plant, reducing debt and implementing a management restructuring plan to reduce staff and related costs and
improve competitiveness. In addition, we strengthened our sales and operating initiatives in China and Southeast Asia allowing us to take
advantage of the increasing need for additional power in that region. However, the demand for new power plants in the United States has
decreased significantly, and we enter fiscal year 2004 with uncertainty regarding when that demand may increase.

During the second quarter of 2003, we decided to permanently close our San Antonio, Mexico plant effective April 30, 2003. This deci-
sion was based primarily on a reduction in volume due to the downturn in new power plant construction within the United States. The
Auxiliary Power Equipment segment recorded approximately $170,000 in severance and other costs associated with the elimination of approxi-
mately 35 employees and the closing of the plant. This plant closing follows our decision in the first quarter of 2002 to close our Ft. Smith,
Arkansas plant, effective April 30, 2002. The decision to close the Ft. Smith plant was based on the cost structure of that facility and we had
already secured replacement capacity to offset that closure in other lower-cost locations around the globe.

During 2002 and continuing in the first half of 2003, we scaled back operations at other locations in our efforts to continually seek low-
cost subcontractor fabrication as well to manage our costs due to the downturn in the United States market. Additional workforce reductions
through lay-offs or attrition in 2002 totaled 193 employees in the Auxiliary Power Equipment segment, with severance costs of $125,000, and
213 employees in the Heat Recovery Equipment segment, with total severance casts of $340,000. In 2003, the Auxiliary Power Equipment and
Heat Recovery segments further reduced their workforce by 201 and 41 employees, respectively. The severance costs associated with these
2003 warkforce reductions totaled approximately $390,000. All amounts have been paid at December 27, 2003.

In October 2003, we announced a management restructuring plan pursuant to which certain employees were offered either one-time
termination or retirement benefits. Certain employees that were offered the retirement incentive packages entered into consulting agreements
with us subsequent to their retirement. The expense of the consulting agreements will be recognized as the services are provided over the
term of the agreements. In addition, retiring employees were offered the right to amend their stock option agreements to extend the date such
options remain exercisable from the original period of 90 days after termination of employment to a new period extending to one year after
termination of employment. In some cases, this plan also provided for the acceleration of vesting for certain unvested stock opticns. Due 10
variable plan option accounting under APB Opinion No. 25 (APB 25), "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” we will expense the intrinsic
value of the options. We recorded charges of approximately $3.9 million during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2003 related to the restructur-
ing plan.

Under the 2003 management restructuring plan, a retirement benefits agreement was entered inta with our Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ), Larry Edwards, pursuant to which he determines his own future retirement date. At this time, his retirement date is unknown. Upon
retirement, Mr. Edwards will receive a payment of approximately $1.9 million, which amount has been accrued in Other fong-term liabilities as
of December 27, 2003. This amount is included in the $3.9 million of 2003 restructuring costs, mentioned above. in addition, we agreed to pay
Mr. Edwards approximately $812,000 in the future upon signing a release agreement on the retirement date. This amount will be expensed in
the fiscal guarter in which he retires. On the retirement date, we plan to enter into a one-year consulting agreement with Mr. Edwards. The
consulting fees, currently estimated at approximately $850,000, will be expensed as the services are rendered over the term of the agreement.
This amount will change based on the actual salary and target bonus at the retirement date.
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Under our current stock aption plans, participants may exercise their vested options up to 90 days after their termination date. As part
of his retirement benefits package, Mr. Edwards may execute an extension agreement, on the retirement date, whereby certain of his stock
options become immediately fully vested. In addition, instead of the narmal 90-day exercise period, Mr. Edwards would have one year from the
retirement date to exercise his options. If this extension agreement were executed and these modifications were made to Mr. Edwards’ origi-
nal stock option agreements, the Company could incur significant compensation expense in accordance with APB 25. The compensation
expense would be measured on the retirement date, as the excess of the fair value of the stock over the exercise prices times the number of
stock options outstanding. Assuming the number of options cutstanding ($.36/share options — 202,151 shares; $4.87/share options — 100,000
shares; $6.10/share options — 100,000 shares) and the closing stock price of $10.62 as of March 3, 2004, we estimate that this pre-tax charge
would be approximately $3.1 million. This amount would vary based on the number of unexercised options and the stock price as of the
retirement date.

A summary of the restructuring costs by fiscal year is as follows (doilars in thousands):

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005
Severance and Retirement Benefits Payments $ 3,931 $1,386 § 436
Consulting Fees — 661 295
Stock Option Expense 5 487 52
Total $ 3,936 $2,534 $ 783

The table above is for purposes of iltustrating actual and projected income statement recognition, not cash flows. The only component
of Mr. Edwards’ retirement benefits agreement that is included in the table above is the $1.9 miflion payment due on the unspecified retire-
ment date (accrued as of December 27, 2003}. The release agreement amount, the consulting fees and the stock option expense for this retire-
ment benefits agreement are not included in the table above as either the timing or the exact amount of these expenses (or both) cannot be
determined at this time.

Historical Overview
The following summary is intended to provide information concerning the historical background of the Company, as certain transactions occur-
ring in fiscal year 2001 had a significant impact on the Company's results of operations for that year.

The Company's predecessor, GEEG Holdings, L.L.C., was formed for the purpose of acquiring Jason Incorporated's power generation
products division by the management of the division and other outside investors. This acquisition was consummated on June 5, 1998. Jason
Incorporated’s power generation division consisted of Braden Manufacturing L.L.C., Deltak L.L.C. and other subsidiaries.

In July 2000, the owners of GEEG Holdings, L.L.C. sought purchasers for the company, as a result of which, in August 2000, investment
entities controlled by Harvest Partners, Inc. acquired controf of GEEG Holdings, L.L.C. in a recapitalization transaction. GEEG Holdings, L.L.C.
partially financed the recapitalization with $140.0 million of borrowings under a senior credit facility and a $67.5 million senior subordinated
Joan. In Gctober 2000, GEEG Holdings, L.L.C. acquired CFI Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiary, Consoclidated Fabricators, Inc., for $25.2 million.

On May 18, 2001, the Company completed a recrganization, pursuant to which Global Power Equipment Group Inc. became the
successor to GEEG Holdings, L.L.C. On May 23, 2001, the Company completed its IPO of 7,350,000 shares of its common stock. As part of
the reorganization transaction, the following occurred:

e (EEG Holdings, L.L.C. declared a distribution on its preferred units in an aggregate amount of $8.3 million, which was equal to the

accrued and unpaid dividend on those units, which was paid from the proceeds of the offering;

e GEEG Holdings, L.L.C. declared a distribution to its members on account of their remaining fiscal year 2001 tax liability, a portion of
which was paid during the second fiscal quarter after completion of the IPG. The remaining balance was paid during the fourth
fiscal quarter out of available cash; and

* The holders of common and preferred units of GEEG Holdings, L.L.C. exchanged their units for shares of the Company’s common stock.

In connection with the reorganization and the IPC, the Company refinanced a portion of its outstanding indebtedness. The Company
used a portion of the net proceeds from the IPQ to repay $27.5 million of its outstanding senior subordinated loan and $85.4 million of the out-
standing balance of its outstanding senior term loans under its senior credit facility. The Company refinanced the remaining balance on its
senior term loans under its senior credit facility using the proceeds of a term loan under an amended and restated senior credit facility. For
additional information, see “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below. This refinancing of the Company’s outstanding indehtedness in May 2001
resulted in an approximate $8.4 million after-tax extraordinary loss from the write-off of deferred financing costs and debt discount, as well as
prepayment premiums relating to the prepayment of long-term debt.
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On June 15, 2001, the Company retired the remaining $40.0 million of its senior subordinated foan with the proceeds of a $35.0 million
increase to the new term loan facility and $5.0 million on the Company's revolving credit facility. This debt extinguishment resutted in an
approximate $9.7 million after-tax extraordinary loss from the write-off of deferred financing costs and debt discount, as well as prepayment
premiums relating to the prepayment of long-term debt. These extraordinary loss amounts were charged to earnings in the second guarter of
fiscal 2001.

Critical Accounting Policies

The following discussion of accounting policies is intended to highlight certain portions of the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
presented as Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, included in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this

Form 10-K. These policies were selected because a fluctuation in actual results versus expected results could materially affect cur operating
results and because the poticies require significant judgments and estimates to be made each guarter. Our accounting related to these policies
is initially based on our best estimates at the time of original entry in our accounting records. Adjustments are periodically recorded when our
actual experience differs from the expected experience underlying the estimates. These adjustments could be material if our experience were
to change significantly in a short period of time. On a monthly basis we compare our actual experience and expected experience in order to
further mitigate the likelihood of material adjustments.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reparting period. The most significant estimates relate to projected total costs of projects, including percentage of completion on
contract accounting, warranty and contingency costs and goodwill impairment analyses. Ultimate results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition — GPEG currently has two segments: Heat Recovery Equipment and Auxiliary Power Equipment. Revenues and
cost of sales for our Heat Recovery Equipment segment are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method based on the percentage of
actual hours incurred to date in relation to total estimated hours for each contract. Qur estimate of the total hours to be incurred at any partic-
ular time has a significant impact on the revenue recognized for the respective period. The percentage-of-completion method is only allowed
under certain circumstances in which the revenue process is long-term in nature (often in excess of one year}, the products sold are highly cus-
tomized and a process is in place whereby revenues, costs and margins can be accurately estimated. Changes in job performance, job condi-
tions, estimated profitability and final contract settiements may result in revisions to costs and income, and the effects of such revisions are
recognized in the pericd that the revisions are determined. Under percentage-of-completion accounting, management must also make key judg-
ments in areas such as percent complete, estimates of project costs and margin, estimates of total and remaining project hours and liquidated
damages assessments. Any deviations from estimates could have a significant positive or negative impact on the results of operations. A one
percent fluctuation of our estimate of percent complete would have increased or decreased 2003 revenues by approximately $1.2 million.

Revenues for our Auxiliary Power Equipment segment are recognized on the completed-contract method due to the short-term nature of
the product production period. Under this method, no revenue can be recognized until the contract is complete and the customer takes risk of
loss and title. Similar to our Heat Recovery segment, changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated profitability and final contract
settlements may result in revisions to job costs and income amounts that are different than were originally estimated.

During the course of a project or when a project has been completed, management may become aware of circumstances in which it
should make provisions for estimated costs. Costs of this nature are common in our industry and inherent in the nature of our business. The
Company records the estimated costs in the period in which they are identified. The costs are typically the resuit of warranty claims, final
contract settlements and liquidated damages due to late delivery. Unanticipated cost increases or delays may occur as a result of several
factors, including:

* increases in the cost or shortages of components, materials or labor;
unanticipated technical problems;
required project modifications not initiated by the customer; and
* suppliers’ or subcontractors’ failure to perform.
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In some cases, cost overruns can be passed on to our customers, which are recognized in the period when agreement is reached with
the customers as to the amount of the claims. The agreement may occur after project completion. Cost overruns that we cannot pass on to our
customers or the payment of liquidated damages under our contracts will lower our gross profit and resulting operating income.

From time to time, customers have claims against the Company that result in litigation. The Company recognizes these claims as a
charge to cost of sales in the period when it is probable they will result in a loss and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

While management has made its best efforts to record known adjustments to revenues and cost of sales for claims, settlements and
damages for projects in process, it is possible that there are significant unknown adjustments that will be made in the future for those pro-
jects. These adjustments could have a material impact on gross profit percentages and resulting profitability in a given annual or quarterly
reporting period.

Nearly all of our contracts are entered into on a fixed-price basis. As a result, we benefit from cost savings, but have limited ability to
recover for any cost overruns, except in those contracts where the scope has changed. Contract prices are established based in part on our
projected costs, which are subject to a number of assumptions. The casts that we incur in connection with each contract can vary, sometimes
substantially, from our original projections. Because of the large scale and long duration of our contracts, unanticipated changes may occur,
such as customer budget decisians, design changes, delays in receiving permits and cost increases, which may delay delivery of our products
and, in turn, delays revenue recognition.

Warranty — Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued as revenue is recognized and included in cost of sales. Estimated
costs are based upon past warranty claims and sales history. Warranty terms vary by contract but generally provide for a term of three years or
tess. We manage our exposure to warranty claims by having our field service and quality assurance personnel regutarly monitor our projects
and maintain ongoing and regular communications with the customer. In 2003, a one percent fluctuation of our warranty expense could
increase or decrease cost of goods sold by approximately $70,000. A reconciliation of the changes to our warranty accrual for 2003 and 2002
is as follows (doliars in thousands);

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2003 2002
Balance at beginning of period $ 19,460 § 16,489
Changes to previous estimates (2,5589) {1,157)
Accruals during the pericd 9,614 10,982
Settlements made {in cash or in kind) during the period (11,511) (6,854)
Ending balance $ 15,004 $ 19,460

Income Taxes — Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The Company classifies deferred tax assets and liabilities into current and non-current amounts based on the classifica-
tion of the related assets and liabilities. Certain judgments are made relating to recoverability of deferred tax assets, level of expected future
taxable income and available tax planning strategies. These judgments are routinely reviewed by management.

Stock-based Compensation — Stock-based compensation is accounted for using the intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”. No compensation expense is recorded for stock options when
granted, as option prices have historically been set at the market value of the underlying stock at the date of grant.

Goodwill and Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — We perform annual impairment analyses on our recorded goadwill and lang-lived
assets whenever events and circumstances indicate that they may be impaired. The analysis includes assumptions related to future revenues,
cash flows, and net assets. This analysis is based primarily on assumptions about future events such as revenue and cash flow growth rates,
discount rates and terminal value of the Campany. Actual deviations from the assumptions used in the analysis could have a significant impact
on the estimated fair values calculated. Factors that would cause a more frequent test for impairment inciude, among other things, a signifi-
cant negative change in the estimated future cash flows of a reporting unit that has goodwill because of an event or a combination of events.
We did not record any impairment provisions upon the adoption of SFAS 142 nor have we recorded any in 2002 or 2003.
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Results of Operations
The table below represents the operating results of the Company for the periods indicated {in thousands except per share amounts):

2003 2002 2001
Revenues $263,778 $ 586,805 $ 723,504
Cost of sales 192,281 455,339 531,958
Gross profit 71,497 131,466 131,546
Selling and administrative expenses 38,083 42,212 40,333
Amartization expense — — 1,716
Operating income 33.414 89,254 89,497
Interest expense 1,504 4,210 15,896
Income before income taxes and extraordinary loss 31.910 85,044 73,601
income tax provision 12,126 33,167 22,905
Income tax benefit from tax status change — — (88,000}
Income before extraordinary loss 19,784 51,877 138,696
Extraordinary loss on debt extinguishment, net of tax — — (18,080)
Net income 18,784 51.877 120,636
Preferred dividend — — {2.947)
Net income available to common stockholders $ 19,784 $ 51877 $ 117,689
Per Comman Share Data ™
Earnings per common share:
Basic income per common share
Income before extraordinary item $ 044 $§ 118 § 346
Extraordinary loss — — {0.46)
Net income available to common shareholders $ 044 $ 118 $ 300
Diluted income per common share
Income before extraordinary item $ 043 § 114 § 33
Extraordinary loss — — {0.44)
Net income available to common shareholders $ 043 $ 114 § 287
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 44,521 43,959 38,275
Diluted 45,911 45,636 41,01

(1) Income before extraordinary item per common share is calculated by dividing income before extraordinary loss after adjusting for preferred dividenis by the weighted average number of common
shares gutstanding during each period.

2003 2002 2001
Net income available to common stockholders $ 19,784 $ 51877 $ 117,689

Add (Less):

Preferred dividend — — 2,947

Extraordinary loss on debt extinguishment, net of tax —_— — 18,060

Income tax benefit from tax status change — — (88,000}

Reduced tax provision due to non-taxable status prior to IPO — — (8,607)

Effect of debt restructuring — — 6.394

{PQ related compensation charge and other — — 804
Adjustad net income available to common stockholders ™ $ 19,784 $ 51877 § 497287
Diluted adjusted net income per common share ™

Diluted shares outstanding 45,911 45,636 46,8747

Net income available to common stockholders $ 043 § 114 § 105

{1} Adjusted ned income and diluted adjusted net incorme per share are not measures of financial performance under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Adjusted net income and diluted
adjusted net income per share represent non-GAAP financial measurements of net income and diluted earnings per share by excluding the effects of each of the jtems set forth in the reconciliation
from the Company's reported net income in accordance with GAAP in the table above. Management believes that the exclusion of these items, which represent typically non-recurring and extraordinary
items, from reported net income and diluted earnings per share provides useful information to investors and management because it better represents the operating performance of the Company and
provides a useful means for evaluating the Company's operating results from year-to-year on a comparable basis. These non-GAAP measurements are not intended to replace the presentation of our
financial results in accordance with GAAP

(2} Adjusted from actual weighted average shares for 2001 of 41,011 to include all issued and outstanding common stock of 43,953 and 2,921 granted stock options on & non-weighted average basis,
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2003 2002 2001

EBITDA calculation:
Net income $ 19,784 $ 51,877 $ 120,636
Add:
Interest expense 1,504 4,210 15,896
Income taxes 12,126 33,167 {65,095)
Depreciation and amortizaticn 3,563 3,682 4,864
EBITDAM 36,977 92,936 76,301
Add:
Extraordinary loss on debt extinguishment, net of tax — — 18,060
Adjusted EBITDA $ 36977 $ 92,936 $ 94,361

(1} EBITDA, represents income before income taxes plus interest, depreciation and amortization. EBITDA is presented because we beligve that it is a useful measure of evaluating our financial
performance because of its focus on our results from aperations before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. EBITDA is utilized for internal analysis of our operations and of operating
subsidiaries. EBITDA is not a measure of financial performance under GAAP and should not be considered in isolation or as an alternative to other financial measures determined under GAAF However,
EBITDA is widely used by investors, financial analysts and rating agencies as an alternative measure of evaluating, comparing and rating operating performance. EBITDA as presented herein may not
be comparable to simitarly-titled measures reported by other companies. A reconciliation of EBITDA to net income available to common shareholders, the mast directly comparable GAAP financial
measure, as well as additional information concerning EBITDA, is set forth in the table ablve.

(2)  Adjusted EBITDA is presented to exclude certain extraordinary losses and charges related to one-time transactional events or settlements. Management believes that exclusion of such losses and
charges more properly reflects performance of our angoing operations and pravides better comparability among our annual resufts in conncection with our internal analysis of EBITDA as discussed in
note (1) above. Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures reported by other companies. A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income available to common shareholders
is set forth in the table above.

The Company uses a 52-/53-week fiscal year ending on the last Saturday in December. As a result, references in this report to fiscal
year 2003 refers to the fiscal year ended December 27, 2003, fiscal year 2002 refers to the fiscal year ended December 28, 2002, and fiscal
year 2001 refers to the fisca! year ended December 29, 2001. The fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 all include 52 weeks.

Fiscal Year 2003 compared to Fiscal Year 2002
Revenues. Revenues decreased 55.0% to $263.8 million for the fiscal year 2003 from $586.8 million for the fiscal year 2002. This decrease is
due to a continued decline in new orders for both Heat Recovery and Auxiliary Power equipment, primarily in the United States market.
Demand in the gas turbine power generation equipment industry began to decrease during the latter half of 2001, and that trend has continued
into 2003. Consequently, the development of domestic gas turbine power plants has slowed considerably beginning in the latter half of 2001.
As a result, our revenues in fiscal 2003 are significantly lower than revenues in 2002 due to the downturn in new power plant construction
within the United States.

The following teble sets forth our segment revenues for fiscal years 2003 and 2002 (dollars in thousands}:

Revenues
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Percentage
2003 2002 Change
Heat recovery equipment segment:

HRSGs § 86,667 $231,019 -625%
Specialty boilers 33,226 77,609 -57.2%
Total segment revenues $119,893 $308,628 -612%

Auxiliary power equipment segment:
Exhaust systems $ 48463 $ 67,375 -281%
Inlet systems 58,897 134,153 —56.1%
Other 36,525 76,849 -523%
Total segmen’ revenues $143,.885 $278177 —48.3%
Total revenues $263.778 $ 586,805 —55.0%

The Heat Recovery Equipment segment revenues decreased 61.2% to $119.9 million for the fiscal year 2003. Revenues for HRSGs
decreased 62.5% to $86.7 million. The volume and size of orders booked into backlog decreased dramatically during 2002 and 2003, which
results in lower revenues in the following periods. Revenues for specialty boilers decreased by 57.2% to $33.2 million. This decrease was due
in part to a lower level of revenues for selective catalytic reduction (SCR) units. The large decrease in SCR units was expected, and is due to
one-time environmental compliance-related investments made in the U.S which were largely completed in 2007 and 2002.
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The Auxiliary Power Equipment segment revenues decreased 48.3% to $143.9 million for fiscal year 2003. Revenues for exhaust sys-
tems decreased by 28.1% to $48.5 million. This decline is primarily due the downturn of the domestic power market resulting in a significantly
lower level of orders. Revenues for inlet systems and other equipment decreased by 56.1% to $58.9 million and 52.3% to $36.5 million,
respectively. The significant decrease is also due to a significantly lower level of domestic orders bocked during 2002 and 2003.

The demand for our products and services depends, to a significant degree, on the continued construction of gas turbine power genera-
tion plants. In fiscal year 2003, approximately 87% of our revenues were from sales of equipment and pravision of services for gas turbine
power plants. The power generation equipment industry has experienced cyclical periods of growth or decline. In periods of decreased demand
for new gas turbine power plants or difficulty in raising capital to finance new power plants, our customers may be more likely to decrease
expenditures on the types of products and systems that we supply and, as a result, our revenues may decrease. In addition, the gas turbine
power industry depends on natural gas. A rise in the price or shortage of natural gas could affect the profitability or operations of gas turbine
power plants, which could adversely affect our future revenues. Liquidity concerns in 2002 and continuing into 2003 in the merchant power
production sector have reduced the availability of financing for power plant development in the United States and have caused the market for
our products to decline. While it is believed that the long-term need for gas fired power plants on a world-wide basis is substantial, lower
demand in the United States during 2002 and 2003, has negatively impacted our bookings and revenue. We anticipate that demand for new
power plants outside of the United States will continue to provide a good market for our products.

The following table presents our revenues by geographic region {dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year 2003 Fiscal Year 2002

Percent

Percent Percent Revenue

Revenue of Total Revenue of Total Change
North America $180.8 68.5% $4835 82.4% —52.6%
South America 14 0.5% 8.8 1.5% -84.1%
Europe 39.0 14.8% 485 8.3% -19.6%
Asia 17.7 8.7% 308 5.2% —42.5%
Other 249 9.5% 15.2 2.6% 63.8%
Total $263.8 100.0% $586.8 100.0% -55.0%

Revenues in North America comprised 68.5% of our revenues for fiscal year 2003 and 82.4% for fiscal year 2002. Revenues in North
America decreased 62.5% to $180.8 million for fiscal year 2003, primarily as a result of a significant decrease in the volume of products sold.
This volume decrease was caused primarily by the decrease in the development of gas turbine power plants in the U.S. gas turbine power
generation equipment industry beginning in the latter half of 2001 and continuing into 2003. A number of factors have contributed to this
situation such as debt and liquidity issues of several merchant power producing companies. While it is believed that the long-term need for
power plants on a world-wide basis is substantial, the current demand, in the United States, has slowed considerably.

Revenues in Asia decreased 42.5% for fiscal year 2003 to $17.7 million. However, the Company continues to believe Asia represents a
growth opportunity and will account for an increasingly larger propartion of the Company’s revenues over the next several years. For 2003,
delays in booking new business in Asia has impacted revenues. While the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) is not
currently a significant factor, delays for other companents on certain Asia projects from other vendors has impacted the timing of recording
bookings and corresponding revenue. Revenues in Europe decreased by 19.6% to $39.0 million primarily as a result of a significant decrease in
the volume of products sold.

Other revenues increased to $24.9 million for fiscal year 2003 primarily as a result of an increase in the number of projects in the
Middle East.

Gross Profit. Gross Profit decreased 46% to $71.5 million for fiscal year 2003 from $131.4 miilion for fiscal year 2002. While total revenues
decreased approximately 55%, the gross profit as a percentage of revenue increased by 4.7%. The 2003 gross profit as a percentage of
revenue benefited primarily from fower production costs by shifting fabrication to lower cost sources as well as improved product mix within
the two operating segments. Additionally, the 2003 gross profit as a percentage of revenue benefited by approximately $7.4 million, or 2.8%,
from actual project costs being lower than originally estimated and recorded on prior year projects due to the favarable outcome of
backcharges, claims and other various contingencies. However, this benefit was partially offset by overhead charges {including severance pay
and other underutilized plant costs) of approximately $6.1 million or (2.3%) as a result of significant reduction of manufacturing in our Clinton,
South Carolina, Tulsa, Oklahoma and Toluca, Mexico plants. We currently expect cur gross margin to range between 18.5% and 19.5% for
fiscal 2004.
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Throughout a project’s life cycle, gross profit percentages are continually monitored and, as actual project costs are incurred and other
unforeseen events accur, our cost estimates and corresponding margins and revenues will continue to be positively and negatively impacted.
We believe the underlying project gross margins at December 27, 2003 are appropriate based on information currently available.

As a result of our focus to shift our manufacturing capacity to lower cost sources, in March 2002, management approved and executed
a plan to shut down our facility in Fort Smith, Arkansas, effective April 30, 2002. The assets, which were included in our Auxiliary Power
Equipment segment, have been disposed. Additionally, in connection with the lay offs of the employees, the Auxiliary Power Equipment
segment recorded $875,000 of severance costs (included as a component of cost of goods sold), related to the elimination of approximately
100 employee positions at the Fort Smith plant, during the first quarter of 2002. All severance costs were paid in 2002

Selling and Administrative Expenses. Selling and administrative expenses decreased 9.8% to $38.1 million for fiscal year 2003 from $42.2
miltion for fiscal year 2002. Not including approximately $1.0 million of costs incurred related to our strategic acquisition efforts incurred in
fiscal year 2003, selling and administrative costs decreased approximately $5.1 million. This decrease is due to decreases in sales and
administrative personnel occurring in the latter part of 2002 as well as other cost savings measures implemented in response to the downturn
in the U.S. power market. Excluding fourth quarter restructuring costs of $3.4 million, selling and administrative expenses were $34.7 million
for 2003.

As a percentage of revenues, selling and administrative expenses increased to 14.4% for fiscal year 2003 from 7.2% for the com-
parable period of fiscal year 2002 as a result of our decreasing revenues and as a result of the previously detailed restructuring costs incurred
in the fourth guarter of 2003.

Operating Income. Operating income decreased to $33.4 million for fiscal year 2003 from $89.3 million in fiscal year 2002. The decrease in
revenues and associated gross profit were the main contributors to this decrease.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased to $1.5 million for fiscal year 2003 from $4.2 million for fiscal year 2002, This decrease is due
primarily to voluntary principal payments that reduced total debt by §35.1 million during 2003. Additionally, our borrowing rate has decreased
by approximately 100 basis points due to general market interest rate reductions. At December 27, 2003, our term debt bore interest at an
average rate of 2.46%.

Income Taxes. The Sompany is currently reflecting a 38% effective tax rate in the 2003 tax provision compared to the 39% effective tax rate

used in fiscal years 2002 and 2001. The decrease is due to the lower marginal tax rate at lower income levels. Qur continued amortization of
goodwill, for income tax reporting purposes, will allow us to reduce cash paid for future taxes by approximately $5.8 million annually, but will
not reduce future income tax expense. We did not have any net operating loss carryforwards at December 27, 2003.

Backlog. Backlog decreased to approximately $178.5 million at December 27, 2003, compared to $275.1 million at December 28, 2002. Based
on current production and delivery schedules, we believe that up to approximately $161 million, or 90%, of our backlog at December 27, 2003,
will be recognized as a portion of our revenues during the next 12 months. Our backlog consists of firm orders from our customers for projects
in progress. Bookings of projects can only be reflected in the backlog when the customers have made a firm commitment. Backlog may vary
significantly quarter to quarter due to the timing of customer commitments. During fiscal year 2003, we remaved boakings of approximately
$35 million, with less than $1 million removed in the fourth quarter. Cancellation fees and revenue recognition have normally exceeded our
out-of-pocket costs on the projects removed.

Fiscal Year 2002 compared to Fiscal Year 2001

Revenues. Revenues decreased 18.9% to $586.8 million for fiscal year 2002 from $723.5 million for fiscal year 2001. This decrease was
primarily the result of a decline in new orders for HRSGs and exhaust systems beginning in the second half of 2001 and continuing through
2002. A significant increase in the volume of inlet systems shipped partially offset this reduction in HRSGs and exhaust system revenue. The
development of gas turhine power plants increased substantially with new order growth during 2000 and through the first half of 2001 but has
slowed considerably since. As the number of projects grew, our bookings and backlog increased significantly with our backlog peaking at the
end of cur third quarter of 2001. We continued to work off our substantial backlog accumulated in 2001 through fiscal year 2002.
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The following table sets forth our segment revenues for fiscal year 2002 and fiscal year 2001 (dollars in thousands}:

Revenues
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Percentage
2002 2001 Change
Heat recovery equipment segment:

HRSGs $231,019 $324.21 -28.7%
Specialty boilers 77,608 118,108 -34.3%
Total segment revenues $308,628 $442319 -30.2%

Auxiliary power equipment segment:
Exhaust systems $ 67,375 $123,919 ~-45.6%
Inlet systems 134,153 86.798 54.6%
Other 76,649 70,468 3.8%
Total segment revenues $278177 $281,185 -1.1%
Total revenues $ 586,805 $723.504 -18.9%

The heat recovery equipment segment revenues decreased 30.2% to $308.6 million for fiscal year 2002. Revenues for HRSGs decreased
28.7% to $231.0 million. Our revenue decreased over the prior year as the order activity for HRSGs slowed considerably compared to the same
period fast year. Revenues for specialty boilers decreased by 34.3% ta $77.6 million. This decrease was due primarily to a lower level of
revenue recognized for selective catalytic reduction (SCR) units in 2002 versus 2001. The large decrease in SCR units was expected, and is due
to one-time environmental compliance-related investments made in the U.S. which were largely completed in 2001 and 2002.

The aurxiliary power equipment segment revenues decreased 1,1% to $278.2 million for fiscal year 2002. Revenues for exhaust systems
decreased by 45.6 % to $67.4 million. This decline was primarily the result of more plants being constructed as combined-cycle units which
require less exhaust equipment and more HRSG equipment. Revenues for inlet systems increased by 54.6% to $134.2 million. The significant
increase for fiscal year 2002 reflected our expansion of our inlet fabrication in Mexico, South Asia and Eastern Europe, which allowed us to
become more competitive and improve our market share for these products. Revenues for other equipment increased by 8.8% to $76.6 million,
driven hy a higher volume of orders in the retrofit equipment portion of this category.

The following table presents our revenues by geographic region (doltars in millions):

Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2001

Percent

Percent Percent Revenue

Revenue of Total Revenue of Total Change
North America $483.5 82.4% $669.2 92.5% -27.7%
South America 8.8 1.5% 16.5 2.3% —48.7%
Europe 485 8.3% 138 1.9% 251.4%
Asia 30.8 52% 6.5 0.9% 373.8%
Other 15.2 2.6% 17.5 2.4% -13.1%
Total $586.8 100.0% $723.5 100.0% -18.9%

Revenues in North America comprised 82.4% of our revenues for fiscal year 2002 and 92.5% for fiscal year 2001. Revenues in North
America decreased 27.8% to $483.5 million for fiscal year 2002, primarily as a result of continued softening in the volume of products sold.
This volume decrease was caused primarily by the overall decrease in demand experienced in the U.S. gas turbine power generation equip-
ment industry during the latter half of 20071 and continuing through 2002. This decrease in demand for our products reflected various issues
such as liquidity problems at several companies in the power plant development industry as well as reduced growth rates and forecasted
power generation needs in the United States.

Revenues in Europe and Asia increased by 251.4% and 373.8%, respectively, for fiscal year 2002. This demonstrated an increased
proportion of our business beginning to shift outside of North America. The Company believes Asia will account for an increasingly arger
proportion of the Company’s revenues over the next several years that will partially offset the expected decline in U.S. sales. More specifically,
we took some deliberate steps in 2002 to address the market opportunities for gas turbine generating capacity additions in China. We formed
a joint venture operating company with Nanjing Boiler Works, established a local subsidiary to conduct business under the Global Power
Equipment Group Inc. name, and expanded our local manufacturing relationships in China in order to capitalize on sales opportunities with
existing OEM customers and prospective customers in China.

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased 0.1% to $131.4 million for fiscal year 2002 from $131.5 million for fiscal year 2001. While total revenues
decreased approximately 18.9%, gross profit remained virtually unchanged due to an improvement in our gross profit as a percentage of
revenues from 18.2% in fiscal year 2001 to 22.4% in fiscal year 2002. The continued benefit of concentrating increased production in lower
cost sources, as well as improved product quality substantially reduced rework costs and, to a lesser degree, a change in the product mix
within our two operating segments lowered product costs.
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During the first quarter of fiscal year 2002, we informed the workforce at our Ft. Smith, Arkansas plant that we would close that facitity
permanently effective April 30, 2002. The decision was based entirely on the cost structure of that facility. We had already secured replace-
ment capacity to offset that closure in other lower-cost locations around the globe. The Auxiliary Power Equipment segment recorded $875,000
of severance costs related to the elimination of approximately 100 employee positions at the Fort Smith plant during the first quarter of 2002.
We scaled back operations at other locations in our efforts to cantinually seek to further our use of low-cost subcontractor fabrication as well
as manage our costs due to the downturn in the U.S. market. Additional workforce reductions in the Auxiliary Power Equipment segment either
through lay-offs or attrition were 199 employees, with severance costs of $125,000. The Heat Recovery Equipment segment reductions totaled
213 employees, with total severance costs of $340,000.

Selling and Administrative Expenses. Selling and administrative expenses increased 4.7% to $42.2 million for fiscal year 2002 from $40.3
million far fiscal year 2001. Of this increase, costs related to our strategic acquisition effarts accounted for approximately $1.7 million. Cost
savings due to decreases in sales and administrative personnel completed late in 2002 were offset by severance payments. These cost savings
were reflected in our 2003 results. As a percentage of revenues, selling and administrative expenses increased to 7.2% for fiscal year 2002
from 5.6% for the comparable prior period.

Amortizatien Expense. There was no amortization expense in fiscal year 2002 compared to $1.7 million in fiscal year 2001 due to the adoption
of SFAS 142 at the beginning of fiscal year 2002,

Operating Income. Operating income decreased to $89.3 million for fiscal year 2002 from $89.5 million in fiscal year 2001. improvement in our
gross profit as a percentage of revenues offset the decrease in revenues from fiscal year 2001 to 2002. Another positive contribution to the
fiscal year 2002 operating income was the elimination of approximately.$1.7 million of amortization expense due to the adoption of SFAS 142.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased to $4.2 million for fiscal year 2002 from $15.9 million for fiscal year 2001, This decrease was due
to a reduction of debt of nearly $160 million paid off with proceeds from our 2001 IPO as well as funds provided from operations. During 2002,
we made mandatory principal payments and voluntary prepayments totaling $45.5 mitlion, including a net reduction of $8.5 million to our
revolving credit facility. Additionally, our borrowing interest rate decreased by approximately 400 basis points due to general market interest
rate reductions and our new credit facilities.

Income Taxes. GEEG Holdings, L.L.C. and its primary operating subsidiaries were limited liability companies prior to the reorganization, and
were treated as partnerships for income tax purposes. As a result, no income tax provision was made with respect to these entities for periods
prior to May 18, 2001. However, because some of GEEG Holdings, L.L.C.'s subsidiaries are corporations, our historical consolidated financial
statements reflected & small income tax provision (benefit) for those prior periods.

As a result of the reorganization transaction, we became subject to corporate federal and state income taxes beginning on May 18,
2001. Also, as a result of the change in our tax status in connection with the reorganization, we recorded an income tax benefit and related
deferred tax asset of $88.0 million, which primarily represents the excess tax basis over book basis related to the August 2000 recapitaliza-
tion. The reduction of the deferred tax asset related to the amortization of goodwill resulting from the August 2000 recapitalization allowed us
to reduce cash paid for future taxes by approximately $5.6 million annually, but will not reduce future income tax expense. For informational
purposes, our consclidated statement of income for the period prior to May 18, 2001 include pro forma income on an after-tax basis assuming
we had been taxed as a corporation since December 27, 1998. We did not have any net operating loss carryforwards at December 28, 2002.
The Company reflected a 39.0% effective tax rate in the tax provision for fiscal year 2002.

Backlog. Backlog decreased to $275.1 million at December 28, 2002 compared to $556.8 million at December 28, 2001, This was mainly the
result of a lower level of orders for the United States market.

PAGE 38




Liguidity and Capital Resources
Our primary sources of cash are net cash flow from operations and borrowings under our credit facilities. Our primary uses of this cash are
principal and interest payments on indebtedness, capital expenditures and general corporate purposes.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operations decreased to $24.4 million for fiscal year 2003 from $103.1 million for fiscal year 2002.
Lower earnings was the primary reason for this decrease. The other primary component of the decrease was the increase in working capital
resulting from the timing of billings to and receipts from customers.

Net cash provided by operations increased 753.2% to $103.1 million for fiscal year 2002 from $12.0 miilion for fiscal year 2001. The
increase in net operating cash flow was due to a large decrease in working capital primarily caused by fluctuations in the timing of billings
to customers and the receipt of payments. Large progress billings to customers far three large Heat Recovery projects during the first three
months of 2002 were collected early in the second quarter and contributed $69 million to this decrease in working capital. These projects
comprised a significant portion of the fabrication schedule for the third and fourth quarters of 2001, and were part of an advantageous multi-
ple unit arrangement with progress billings less favorable than our normal terms. Planned fluctuations in our cash requirements for projects
such as these will occur from time to time. Qur $75 million revolving credit facility is available to accommodate these fluctuations. At the end
of fiscal year 2002, we had not utilized the revolver to finance our working capital needs, leaving an available balance of $31.8 million, after
taking into account outstanding letters of credit of $43.2 million.

Investing Activities. Net cash provided by investing activities increased to $0.2 million for fiscal year 2003 from $2.7 million used for investing
activities for fiscal year 2002 due to our decrease in capital expenditures and proceeds from the sale of Ft. Smith assets during 2003. Net cash
used for investing activities decreased to $2.7 million for fiscal year 2002 from $11.6 million for fiscal year 2007. In fiscal year 2001 the cash
was primarily used for the January 2001 acquisition of a manufacturing facility in Mexico.

Financing Activities. Net cash used by financing activities was $34.7 million in fiscal year 2003 compared to $45.5 million in fiscal year 2002,
Long-term debt payments of $35.1 million and proceeds of $0.4 million from the issuance of common stock comprise the activity for 2003.
Activity in 2002 consists of net payments on our revolving credit facility of $8.5 million as well as payments on our term debt of $37.0 million.
The net impact of the IPC and related financing of our bank credit facilities, as described in “ltem 7. Histarical Overview”, accounted for the
major portion of the 2001 activity.

The Company used a portion of the net proceeds of the 2001 IPO to (i) repay approximately $86.3 million of its outstanding indebted-
ness under the senior credit facility, including accrued and unpaid interest of $0.9 million, (i) repay $27.5 million of its senior subordinated
loan, plus accrued and unpaid interest, and (iii) pay related prepayment premiums, fees and expenses that amounted to an $8.4 million after-
tax extracrdinary loss. The Company extinguished the remaining borrowings under the senior credit facility outstanding after the application of
the net proceeds of the IPO by using the proceeds of new loans under an amended and restated senior cradit facility described below.

In connection with the completion of the IPO on May 23, 2001, the Company entered intc an amended and restated senior credit facility
from a syndicate of lenders. The amended and restated senior credit facility provided for term loans of up to $60.0 million and a revoiving
credit facility of up to $75.0 million. The amended and restated senior credit facility was further amended on June 15, 2001 to provide for term
loans of up to $35.0 miliion. Qutstanding loans under the amended and restated senior credit facility mature in May 2005. During June 2001,
the Company utilized $60.0 million of term loans ta pay remaining borrowings under the old senior credit facility and $35.0 million of term
loans and $15.0 million under the revalving facility to pay off the remaining $40.0 million senior subordinated loan outstanding and accrued
interest and prepayment penalties. As a result of this debt extinguishment, the Company recorded an additional $9.7 million after-tax
extraordinary loss.

At December 27, 2003, the Company had $24.9 million outstanding under the term loan and had no borrowings outstanding under the
revolver. Letters of credit totaling $31.0 million were issued and outstanding at the end of 2003.

At the Company's option, amounts borrowed under the amended and restated senior credit facility will bear interest at either the
Eurodollar rate or an alternate base rate, plus, in each case, an applicable margin.The applicable margin wili range from 1.0% to 2.25% in the
case of a Eurodollar based loan and from 0% ta 1.25% in the case of a base rate loan, in each case, based on a leverage ratio. At December
27, 2003 the term debt of $24.9 million bore interest at an average rate of 2.46%.

The Company's amended and restated senior credit facility;

e s guaranteed by all of its domestic subsidiaries;

* s secured by a lien on all its domestic subsidiaries” property and assets, including, without limitation, a pledge of all capital stock

owned by it and its domestic subsidiaries, subject to a limitation of 65% of the voting stock of any foreign subsidiary;

¢ requires the Company to maintain minimum interest and fixed charge coverage ratios and limit its maximum leverage; and

¢ among other things, restricts the Company’s ability to (1) incur additional indebtedness, (2) sell assets other than in the ordinary

course of business, (3) pay dividends in excess of 25% of its cumulative net income from January 1, 2001 through the most recent
fiscal quarter end, subject to leverage and liguidity thresholds and other customary restrictions, (4) make capital expenditures in
excess of $13 million in fiscal year 2001 or $10 million in any fiscal year, thereafter, with adjustments for carry-overs from the
previous year, {5) make investments and acquisitions and (6) enter intc mergers, consolidations or similar transactions.
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As of Becember 27, 2003, and through the release of this Form 10-K, we are not in default on any of the aforementioned covenants.
However, because our financial performance is impacted by various ecanomic, financial, and industry factors, we cannot say with certainty
whether we will satisfy these covenants in the future. Noncompliance with these covenants would constitute an event of default, allowing the
lenders to accelerate the repayment of any barrowings outstanding under the related amended and restated senior credit facility. While no
assurances can be given, we believe that we would be able to successfully negotiate amended covenants or obtain waivers if an event of
default were imminent; however, we might be required to make certain financial concessions. Our business, results of operations and financial
condition may be adversely affected if we were unable to successfully negotiate amended covenants or obtain waivers on acceptable terms.

In April 2001, GEEG Holdings, L.L.C. declared a distribution equal to $5.0 million to its members on account of their first quarter fiscal
year 2001 tax liability. In addition, in connection with the reorganization transaction, the Company deciared {1} a distribution on account of its
members’ estimated remaining fiscal year 2001 tax liability and (2) a distribution on its preferred units in an aggregate amount of $6.3 million
equal to the accrued and unpaid dividends on those units. The Company paid these distributions on May 24, 2001, after the closing of the IPO.
The Company used a portion of the net proceeds from the IPO to pay the preferred distribution.

Cash Obligations. Under various agreements, we are obligated to make future cash payments in fixed amounts. These include payments under
our amended and restated senior credit facility, our agreement with Harvest Partners, Inc. (Harvest), the 2003 management restructuring plan
{including retirement and severance benefits and consulting fees) and rent payments required under operating lease agreements.

The following table summarizes our fixed cash obligations as of December 27, 2003 over various future periods (dolfars in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 4-5 After 5
Contractual Cash Obligations 1 Year Years Years Years Total
Long-term debt $ 14 $24,949 $ — $ — $24,963
Restructuring costs 2,047 731 — 3,550" 6,328
Operating leases 2,215 3,238 2,803 2,936 11.192
Total contractual cash obligations $4,276 $28,918 $ 2,803 $6.,486 $42,483

(1) Represents amount due to the Company’s CEQ in a year subsequent to 2003 in which he resigns, which resignation will result in retirement benefits payments in the year of resignation and consulting
fees in the 12-month period following the resignation.

fn addition to the contractual cash obligations in the table abave, we are contractually committed to annual payments of certain fees
for financial advisory and strategic planning services to Harvest of $1.3 million per year, under a management agreement with Harvest. The
terms of the management agreement provide for automatic renewals of additional one-year periods commencing each August unless terminat-
ed for cause or by Harvest. During any subsequent renewal period of the management agreement the management fee will decrease to
$750,000 per year if the affiliates of Harvest sell more than 50% of the shares of the Company’s common stock they owned at the time of the
Company's initial public offering on May 23, 2001. The management fee will be eliminated and the management agreement will terminate, if
in any subsequent renewal period the affiliates of Harvest sell more than 66.6% of the shares of the Company’s common stock they owned on
May 23, 2001.

While estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued as revenue is recognized, the actual cash payments for warranty claims
can vary widely from year to year. A reconciliation of the changes to our warranty liability for 2003 and 2002 is located in the Critical
Accounting Policies section of this form 10-K.

The Company has various future obligations in connection with its 2003 management restructuring plan. A full discussion of the
management restructuring plan is located in the Overview section of “ltem 7. Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operatiors.”

At December 27, 2003 we had a contingent liability for stand-by letters of credit totating $31.0 million that have been issued and are
outstanding that generally were issued to secure performance on customer contracts. Currently, there are no amounts drawn upon these
letters of credit.

At December 27, 2003, the Company had available cash on hand of approximately $51.3 million and approximately $44.0 million of
available capacity under its revolving credit facility. The Company anticipates that it will generate sufficient cash flows from operations to
satisfy its cash commitments and capital requirements for fiscal year 2004, however, it may utilize borrowings under the revolving credit
facility to supplement its cash requirements from time to time. The Company estimates that capital expenditures in fiscal year 2004 will be
approximately $1.0 million. The amount of cash flows generated from operations is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including
the continued construction of gas turbine power generation plants as well as other risks described under “ltem 1. Business- Risk Factors” in
this Form 10-K. In fiscal 2004, the Company may actively seek and consider acquisitions of ar investments in complementary businesses,
products or services. The consummation of any acquisition using cash will affect the Company's liquidity.
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Related Parties

Affiliates of Harvest are our largest stackholders. in addition, two of the directors that serve on our board are both genera! partners of Harvest,
During fiscal year 2003 and 2002, we incurred consulting expenses from Harvest in the amounts of $1.3 million each year. In 2001, we paid
them $1.0 million in regular consulting expenses and an additional $0.5 millicn for assistance in abtaining the amended and restated senior
credit facility following the close of our IPO. Under a management agreement with Harvest we are contractually committed to annual pay-
ments of certain fees for financial advisory and strategic planning services to Harvest of $1.3 million per year. The terms of the management
agreement provide for automatic renewals of additional one-year periods commencing each August unless terminated for cause or by Harvest.
During any subsequent renewal period of the management agreement the management fee will decrease to $750,000 per year if the affiliates
of Harvest sell more than 50% of the shares of the Company’s common stock they owned at the time of the Company’s initial public offering
on May 23, 2001. The management fee will be eliminated and the management agreement will terminate, if in any subsequent renewal
period the affiliates of Harvest sell more than 66.6% of the shares of the Company’s common stock they owned on May 23, 2001.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FIN 46, "Consolidation of Variable interest Entities.” This is an
interpretation of ARB No. 51 “Consolidation of Financial Statements,” which addresses the consolidation by business enterprises of variable
interest entities that either: {1) do not have sufficient equity investment at risk to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support, or (2) the equity investors lack an essential characteristic of a controlling interest. In December 2003, the FASB
issued a revision of FIN 46 (FIN 46R), which clarified certain complexities of FIN 46 and generally requires adoption of all special-purpose
entities that qualify as variable interest entities no later than the end of the first reporting period ending after December 15, 2003 and to all
non special-purpose entities that qualify as variable interest entities no later than the end of the first reporting period ending after March 15,
2004. At December 27, 2003, the Company did nct have any entities that require disclosure or new consolidation as a result of adopting the
provisions of FIN 46 or FIN 46R.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed ta market risks. Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market prices and interest and fareign
currency rates. We do nat enter into derivative or other financial instruments for speculative purposes. Our market risk could arise from
changes in the credit worthiness of customers, interest rates and foreign currency exchange.

Credit Risks. Our financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of trade receivables. Given the nature
of our business, we typically have significant amounts due from a relatively low number of customers. At December 27, 2003, 42% of our
trade receivables were due from three customers. In order to reduce our risk of non-collection, we perform extensive credit investigation of all
new customers.

Interest Rate Risk. We are subject to market risk exposure related to changes in interest rates. Assuming our current level of borrowings, a
100 basis point increase in interest rates under these borrowings would have increased our interest expense for 2003 by approximately $0.3
million. However, under the terms of our amended and restated senior credit facility, we are allowed to lock into interest rates for a period of
up to twelve months on our long-term debt. In January 2003, we entered into fixed rate agreements yielding an average rate of 2.46% with
varying maturity dates extending as long as one year on all of our outstanding long-term debt as of the end of fiscal year 2003.

During 2001, we managed our exposure to interest rate fluctuations on our variable rate debt through the use of an interest rate collar
agreement with a notional amount of $77.1 million until July 2001, when the collar agreement was terminated. With the rapid decreases in
interest rates through the first seven months of 2001, the obligation under the collar increased to approximately $1.9 million. In July 2001, we
decided to terminate the collar agreement, rather than incur further costs related to reductions in interest rates going forward. As a resut, the
Company recorded a $1.4 million charge in 2001 through interest expense for the cash flow hedge designated to the outstanding debt repaid in
the second quarter. in addition, the Company recognized a $0.5 million charge through interest expense for the mark-to-market loss of the
interest rate collar not considered a cash flow hedge in the third quarter.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Portions of our operations are located in foreign jurisdictions including Europe, Mexico and China. Our
financial results could be affected by factors such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates or weak economic conditions in foreign
markets. In addition, sales of products and services are affected by the value of the United States dollar relative to other currencies. Changes
in currency rates may affect our cost of materials or labor purchased in foreign countries. We attempt to manage portions of our foreign
currency exposure through denomination of cash receipts and cash disbursements in the same currency. Periodically, we manage our foreign
currency exposure through the use of foreign currency forward exchange agreements. Forward agreements totaling $1.4 million were in place
at December 27, 2003 with varying amounts due through May 2004. Currently, the Company recognizes changes in the fair values of the
forward agreements through earnings. The fair value of unrealized gains on the forward agreements of approximately $0.1 million at
December 27, 2003 are included in earnings.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Global Power Equipment Group Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, {loss), compre-
hensive income {loss), stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Global
Power Equipment Group Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 27, 2003 and December 2887, 200232, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for the yeareach of the two years in the periodthen ended December 27, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America. These financia!l statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsi-
bility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. The consolidated financial statements of Global Power Equipment Group Inc. as of December 29, 2067 and December 30,
2000, and for each of the two years in thefor the period ended December 28, 2001, were audited by other independent accountants who have
ceased operations. Those independent accountants expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements in their report dated
February 15, 2002.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 57 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards 142, "Goodwilt and Other Intangible Assets” on December 30, 2001.

As discussed above, the consolidated financial statements of Global Power Equipment Group Inc. as of December 28, 2001 and
December 30, 2000, and for each of the two years infor the period ended December 29, 2001, were audited by other independent accountants
who have ceased operations. As described in Notes 2 and 57, these consolidated financial statements have been revised to include the transi-
tional disclosures required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,. "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, which was
adopted by the Company as of December 30, 2001. We audited the transitional disclosures described in Notes 2 and 57. In our opinion, the
transitional disclosures for December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000 in Notes 2 and 57 are appropriate. However, we were not engaged to
audit, review, or apply procedures to the December 29, 2001 or December 30, 2000 consolidated financial statements of the Company other
than with respect to such disclosures and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the December 29, 2001
or December 30, 2000 consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
February 13, 2004
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This is & copy of the audit report previously issued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection with Global Power Equipment Group Inc.'s filing on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2001. This audit report has not been reissued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection with this
filing on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 278, 20032. For further discussion, See Exhibit 23.2 which is filed herewith and hereby
incorporated by reference into the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2002 of which this repaort forms a part.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To Global Power Equipment Group Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Global Power Equipment Group inc. (a Delaware corparation
formerly GEEG Holdings, L.L.C.) and Subsidiaries as of December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, and the related consolidated statements of
income {loss), comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the three years in the period ended December 28,
2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an apinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accardance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supparting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our cpinion.

In our opinion, the consalidated financial statements referred to abave present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Global Power Equipment Group Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 29, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota,
February 15, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 27,

December 28,

{in thousands) 2003 2002
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 51315 $ 59,042
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,325 and $1,775 42,582 82,844
Inventories 3,013 4,403
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings 40,706 62,289
Deferred income taxes 17,315 22,385
Other current assets 3,983 2.082
Total current assets 158,914 233,045
Property, plant and equipment, net 20,740 25,463
Deferred income taxes 55,094 64,803
Goodwill 45,000 45,000
Other assets 1,248 1,387
Total assets $ 280,996 $ 369,704
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 14 $§ 5423
Accounts payable 18,974 29,773
Accrued compensation and employee benefits 7,285 9,30t
Accrued warranty 15,004 19,460
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings 53,293 107,242
Accrued income taxes — 9,471
Other current liabilities 5,203 4417
Total current liabilities 99,773 185,087
Other long-term liabilities 1,888 —
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 24,949 54,650
Commitments and contingencies {Notes 7 and 11)
Stackholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized,
no shares issued or outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
45,207,930 and 43,976,679 shares issued and outstanding
for 2003 and 2002 452 440
Paid-in capital deficit (25,492) (28,321)
Accumulated comprehensive income 2,616 822
Retained earnings 176.810 157,026
Total stockholders’ equity 154,386 129,967
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 280,996 $ 369,704

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year

For the Year

For the Year

Ended Ended Ended
December 27, Oecember 28, December 29,
fin thousands, except per share amounts) 2003 2002 2001
Revenues $ 263778 $ 586,805 $ 723,504
Cost of sales 192,281 455,333 591,958
Gross profit 71,497 131,466 131,546
Selling and administrative expenses 38,083 42,212 40,333
Amortization expense — — 1.716
Operating income 33414 89,254 89,497
Interest expense 1,504 4,210 15,896
Income before income taxes and extraordinary loss 31,910 85,044 73,601
Income tax provision 12,126 33,167 22,905
Income tax benefit from tax status change — — (88,000}
Income before exiraordinary loss 19,784 51.877 138,696
Extraordinary loss on debt extinguishment, net of tax — — {18,060}
Net income 19,784 51,877 120,636
Preferred dividend — — (2,847)
Net income available to common stockholders § 19784 § 51,877 $ 117,689
Earnings per weighted average common share:
Basic:
Income before extraordinary loss $ 0.44 $ 1.18 $ 346
Extraordinary loss — — {0.46)
Net income available to common stockholders 8 0.44 $ 1.18 § 300
Weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding-hasic 44,521 43,959 39,275
Diluted:
income before extraordinary loss $ 0.43 3 114 $ 33
Extraordinary loss — — (0.44)
Net income available to common stockholders $ 0.43 $ 1.14 § 287
Weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding-diluted 45911 45,636 41,011
Unaudited pro forma amounts to reflect pro forma income taxes and
adjustment of tax benefit from tax status change (Note 2)
Income before income taxes and extraordinary loss § 73601
Income tax provision 28,704
Income before income tax benefit from
tax status change and extracrdinary loss § 44,897
Income per common share before extraordinary loss:
Basic income per common share $ 1.14
Diluted income per common share 1.09
Net income $ 19,784 § 51877 $ 120,636
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,794 902 (23)
Comprehensive income $ 21578 § 52779 $ 120,613

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Mandatorily Comman units Common Stock
redeemable
preferred units Series A Accumulated
Paid-in Undistributed other
Number Number Capital Retained eamings comprehensive
(in thousands, except unit and share amounts) of Units Amaunt of Units Amount Shares Amount Deficit earnings {deficit) income (loss| Total
Balance, December 30, 2000 1,008,968 $98912 1,122280 $10.686 — $— & — 3 — ${267,111) $ (57) $(157,570)
Preferred dividend — 2,947 — — — — — — (2,947) — —
Amortization of deferred
compensation — — — — — — — 841 52 — 893
Preferred distribution — (6,334) — — — — — — — — {6,334)
Tax distributions — — — — — — — — {11,665) — {11,665)
Exchange of membership
units for common shares
(Note 3) {1,008,968)  (95,525) (1,122,280) (10,686} 36,603,340 366 105,845 — — — —_
Effect of rearganization
(Note 3) — — — — — — (265,343 — 265,343 — —
Issuance of comman stock — — — — 7,350,000 74 131,169 — —_ — 131,243
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — — — — — — — — (23) (23)
Net income — — — — — — — 104,308 16,328 — 120,636
Balance, December 28, 2001 — — — — 43,953,340 440  (28,329) 105,149 — (80) 77.180
Exercise of options — — — — 23,339 — 8 — — — 8
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — — —_ — — — — — 902 802
Net income — — — — — — — 51.877 — — 51.877
Balance, December 28, 2002 — — — — 43976679 440 (28321) 157,026 — 822 129,967
Exercise of options — — — — 12312891 12 431 — — — 443
Tax benefit on exercise of
stock options — — — — — — 2,393 — — — 2,393
Stock-based compensation — — — —_ — — 5 — — — 5
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — — — — — — — — 1,794 1.794
Net income — — — — — — — 19,784 — — 19,784
Balance, December 27, 2003 — § — — § — 45207830 $452 §(25492) $176810 § — 32,616 3§ 154,386

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended Ended
December 27, December 28, December 29,
{in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Operating activities:
Net income $ 19784 $ 51877 $ 120,836
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities-

Extraordinary loss — — 18,060
Income tax benefit from tax status change — — (88,000
Depreciation and amortization 4,202 4,625 5,684
Deferred income taxes 11.464 3,334 (1.799)
Loss on disposal of eguipment 402 494 —
Changes in operating items (Note 12) (13.364) 42,758 (43,583)
Other long-term liabilities 1,888 — —
Stock-based compensation 5 — —

Net cash provided by operating activities 24,381 103,088 12,018

Investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of equipment 606 208 —
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment 411 (2,869) {11,559)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 195 {2,661) {11,559)

Financing activities:

Proceeds from revolving credit facility — 124,000 143,525
Payments on revalving credit facility —_ {132,550) (134,975)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt —_ — 224,557
Payments on long-term debt {35,110} (37.008) (369,665)
Net proceeds from stock issuance —_ — 131,243
Proceeds from exarcise of stock option 443 8 —
Preferred dividends — — (6,334}
Member tax distribution — — (11,374)
Increase in deferrad financing costs — — {1,309)
Net cash used in financing activities (34,667) (45,548) (24,332)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 2,364 1,728 —

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents {7,727) 56,607 (23.873)

Cash and cash eguivelents, beginning of period 59,042 2,435 26,308
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $§ 51315 § 59,042 § 2435

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consofidated financial statements.

PAGE 46




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION
Global Power Equipment Group Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company” or “GPEG", formerly GEEG Holdings, L.L.C.) designs, engineers and
manufactures heat recovery and auxiliary power equipment. Qur products include:

* heat recovery steam generators; e exhaust systems;
& filter houses; * diverter dampers; and
* inlet systems; ¢ specialty boilers and related products

® gas turbine, steam turbine and generator enclosures;

The Company's corporate headquarters are located in Tulsa, Oklahoma, with operating facilities in Plymouth, Minnesota; Tulsa,
Oklahoma; Auburn, Massachusetts; Clinton, South Carolina; Monterrey, Mexico; Toluca, Mexico; and Heerlen, Netherlands.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Global Power Equipment Group Inc.
and its wholly owned and majority owned subsidiaries: Deltak, L.L.C. {Deltak); Deltak Construction Services, Inc.; Deltak Europe — BV; Deltak
Israel, Ltd.; Shenzhen Deltak Energy Systems Co. Ltd.; Nanjing Deltak Power Equipment Co. Ltd.; Braden Manufacturing, L.L.C. (Braden); Braden
Construction Services, Inc.; Braden Europe — BV, Braden Manufacturing S.A. de C.V.; CFl Holdings, Inc.; Consolidated Fabricators, inc. {CFl), and
CFl Mexicana, S.A. de C.V and Global Power Equipment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year End. The Company uses a 52-/53-week fiscal year ending on the last Saturday in December. For the purposes of these notes to the
consolidated financial statements, the fiscal years ended December 27, 2003, December 28, 2002 and, Decamber 29, 2001 and December 30,
2000 are referred to as 2003, 2002, and 2001 and 2000, respectively. The fiscal years 2003, 2002 and, 2001 each and 2000 include 52, 52 and
53 weeks, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Campany cansiders all highly liquid investments that are convertible into known amounts of cash and have
original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist primarily of investments in commercial paper.

Inventories. Inventaries consist of raw materials and are stated at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or market.
Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is

calculated using the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes over the estimated useful lives.
The Company's property, plant and equipment balances, by significant asset category, are as follows:

December 27, December 28,
(in thousands) 2003 . 2002 Lives
Land ) $ 2418 $ 2713 —
Buildings and improvements 12121 12,188 5-39 years
Machinery and equipment 13.462 15,019 5-12 years
Furniture and fixtures 6,514 6.593 3-10 years
34515 36,513
Less accumulated depreciation (13,775) {11,044)
Property, plant and equipment, net § 20,740 $ 25,469

Depreciation expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $3.6 million, $3.7 million, and $3.1 million and S2.2 million, respectively. Costs of
significant additions, renewals and betterments are capitalized. When an asset is sold or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulat-
ed depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and the gain or loss on disposition is reflected in earnings. Maintenance and repairs
are charged to operations when incurred. Long-lived assets are reviewed for potential impairment on an annual basis and as other circum-
stances dictate.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the costs of acquisitions in excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired and prior to fiscal year 2002 was

amortized using the straight-line method over 30 years. Accumulated amortization as of December 29, 2001 was $4.7 million. Upon adoption of
SFAS 142 on December 30, 2001, the Company no longer amortizes goodwill. Goodwill is tested each year for impairment; however, no impair-
ment adjustments were required in 2002 or 2003.
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Deferred Financing Costs. Deferred financing costs are amortized by the effective interest method over the terms of the related debt facilities.
Total interest experse associated with the amortization of these costs was $0.6 million, $0.9 miltion, and $0.7 million and $0.6 million in 2003,
2002, and 2001 anc 2000, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets. Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and intangible assets, are evaluated for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable through the estimated undiscounted future
cash flows from the use of these assets. No impairments were required in 2003, 2002, or 2001 ar 2000.

Warranty Costs. The Company typically warrants labor and fabrication for 12 to 18 months after shipment.three years or less. Estimated costs of
warranty repairs are accrued and included on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as accrued warranty.

Income Taxes. The current provision for income taxes is based on current federal and state statutory rates which are adjusted based on changes
in tax laws and significant fluctuations in taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The Company classifies deferred tax liabilities and assets into current and non-current amounts based on the classification of the relat-
ed assets and liabilities. Certain judgments are made relating to recoverability of deferred tax assets, level of expected future taxable income
and available tax planning strategies. These judgments are routinely reviewed by management.

Insurance. Certain subsidiaries of the Company are self-insured for health and workers' compensation. Amounts charged to expense in 2003,
2002 and, 2001 anc 2000 for these items were $1.4 million, $2.7 miltion, and $2.3 miltion and $2.2 million, respectively, and were based on
actual and estimated claims incurred. The Company has provided a $0.9 million letter of credit at December 27, 2003, as security for possible
workers' compensation claims.

Revenue Recognition. GPEG has two segments: Heat Recovery Equipment and Auxiliary Power Equipment. Heat Recovery Equipment products
include heat recovery steam generators, heat recovery boilers, and other types of waste heat products. Auxiliary Power Equipment products
include exhaust and inlet systems, filter houses, retrofit activity, diverter dampers, turbine enclosures and other power equipment.

Revenues for the Company’s Heat Recovery Equipment segment are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method based on the
percentage of actual hours incurred to date in relation to total estimated hours for each contract. Changes in job performance, job conditions,
estimated profitability and final contract settlements may result in revisions to costs and income, and the effects of such revisions are recog-
nized in the period that the revisions are determined. Revenues for the Company’s Auxiliary Power Equipment segment are recognized on the
completed-contract method due to the short-term nature of the product production period. The Company recognizes various types of service
revenues as the services are provided. Service revenues are not significant in any period presented.

Major Customers. The Company has certain customers that represent more than 10 percent of consolidated revenues. The revenue for these
customers, as well as corresponding accounts receivable, as a percentage of the consolidated revenues and accounts receivable balances, for
2003, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Revenues Accounts Receivable
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
General Electric 32% 35% 25% 27% 9% 24%
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries 4% 5% 16% 5% 18% 11%
The Southern Company 7% 14% 1% 0% 0% 0%
ExxonMaobil 10% 1% 0% 9% 0% 0%

Customers for both our heat recovery equipment segment and our auxiliary power equipment segment include original equipment
manufacturers 0EMs, engineering and construction firms, operators of power generation facilities and firms engaged across several process
related industries. The end users of most of our products are developers and operators of gas turbine power plants. Our top ten customers vary
from year to year due to the relative size and duration of our projects.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses
and short-term debt approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is estimated based on the discounted value of the future cash flows expected to be paid
on the loans. The discount rate used to estimate the fair value of the loans is the rate currently available to the Company for foans with similar
terms and maturities. The fair value at December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002 approximated the carrying value.

Income Per Common Share. Basic and diluted income per common share are calculated as follows:

{in thousands, except per share amounts) 2003 2002 2001
Numerator:
Income before extraordinary loss $ 19,784 $ 51,877 $ 138,696
Preferred stock dividend — — {2,947}
Income available to common stockholders 19,784 51,877 135,749
Extraordinary loss — — (18.060)
Net income available to common stockholders $ 19,784 $ 51,877 $ 117,689
Basic earnings per common share:
Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 44,520,807 43,958,918 39,275,398
Basic earnings per common share:
Income befare extraordinary loss $ 0.44 $ 1.18 3 3.46
Extracrdinary loss — — {0.46)
Net income available to common stockholders $ 0.44 $ 1.18 $ 3.00
Diluted earnings per common share:
Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 44,520,607 43,958,918 39,275,398
Dilutive effect of gptions to purchase common stock 1,390,217 1,676,626 1,735,483
Weighted average shares outstanding assuming dilution 45,910,824 45,635,544 41,010,887
Diluted earnings per common share:
Income befaore extraordinary loss $ 0.43 $ 1.14 $ 331
Extraordinary loss — — (0.44)
Net income available to commaon stackholders $ 0.43 $ 1.14 $ 2.87

Anti-dilutive stock options for 2003 and 2002 are 1,299,000 and 566,000, respectively. There were none in 2001.

Derivative Financial Instruments. SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” establishes accounting and
reporting standards requiring that every derivative instrument be recorded on the balance sheet as either an asset or a liability measured at
fair value. SFAS 133 requires that changes in a derivative’s fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting
criteria are met. Special accounting for qualifying hedges allows a derivative's gains and losses to be deferred in other comprehensive income
until the transaction occurs {“cash flow hedge") or to offset related results on the hedged item in the income statement (“fair value hedge”).
Hedge accounting requires that a company formally document, designate and assess the effectiveness of transactions that receive hedge

accounting treatment.

Periodically, the Company uses derivative financial instruments in the management of its foreign currency exchange and interest rate
exposures. As of December 27, 2003, there were foreign currency forward exchange contracts totaling approximately $1.4 million with varying
amounts due through May 2004. Currently, the company recognizes changes in fair values of the forward agreements through earnings. The
fair value of unrealized gains on the forward agreements of approximately $0.1 million at December 27, 2003 are included in earnings. As of
December 28, 2002, notional amounts outstanding under foreign currency forward exchange agreements were approximately $6.0 million. The
fair value of the unrealized gains on the forward agreements were approximately $0.4 million at December 28, 2002, recognized through

earnings. No foreign currency forward exchange contract amounts were outstanding at December 29, 2001.

2003

2002

2001

Risk free interest rate
Expected dividend yield
Expected lives

Expected volatility

Option fair value at grant date

3.25%
None
5 years
34.00%
$ 216

2.50%
None
5 years

65.00%
$ 273

3.50%
None
5 years
65.00%
$ 8.28




The expected volatility decreased significantly from 2002 to 2003 due to a more stable Company stack price in 2003.
Had compensation cost been determined consistent with SFAS 123, the Company’s pro forma net income would have been as follows
{unaudited):

fin thousands, except per common share date) 2003 2002 2001
Net income available to common stockholders:

As reported $19,784 $ 51,877 $117,689
Stock-based compensation expense included in net income as reported 3 - 880
Additional stock-based compensation expense had the fair value been applied to all awards (642) (167) (4,102}

Pro forma $19,145 $ 51.710 $ 114,467

Basic income per common share:
As reported $ 044 $ 118 § 300
Pro forma 0.43 1.18 2.9
Diluted income per common share:
As reported $ 043 $ 114 $ 287
Pro forma 0.42 1.13 279

Foreign Currency. Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign operations are translated at year-end exchange rates, and revenues and
expenses are translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the period. Translation adjustments are recorded as a separate
component of stockholders' equity and other comprehensive income on the accompanying cansolidated financial statements. Gains and losses
from foreign currency transactions are included in earnings. Such gains and losses have not been significant in any period.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contin-
gent assets and liabilities at the date of the consclidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The most significant estimates relate to projected total costs of projects, including percentage of completion on contract
accounting, warranty and contingency costs and goodwill impairment analyses. Ultimate results could differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FIN 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities.” This is an interpretation of ARB No. 51 “Consolidation of Financial Statements,” which addresses the consolidation
by business enterprises of variable interest entities that either: (1) do not have sufficient equity investment at risk to permit the entity to
finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support, or {2) the equity investors lack an essential characteristic of a control-
ling interest. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision of FIN 46 {FIN 46R), which clarified certain complexities of FIN 48 and generally
requires adoption of all special-purpose entities that qualify as variable interest entities no later than the end of the first reporting period end-
ing after December 15, 2003 and to all non special-purpose entities that qualify as variable interest entities no later than the end of the first
reporting period ending after March 15, 2004. At December 27, 2003, the Company did not have any entities that require disclosure or new
consolidation as a result of adopting the provisions of FIN 46 or FIN 46R.

Pro forma Information (Unaudited). The unaudited pro forma tax provision shawn on the consolidated statements of income is presented
assuming the Company had been a C-Corporation during the entire fiscal year 2001 using effective tax rates of 39 percent and by excluding the
effect of recording the one-time tax benefit for the change in tax status and extraordinary loss amounts.

3. PUBLIC OFFERING OF COMMON STOCK

On May 18, 2001, the Company sold 7,350,000 shares of commaon stock, $.01 par value, in an underwritten initial public offering (IPQ) at a
price of $20.00 per share, less underwriting discounts and commissions. The underwriters also exercised an option to purchase an additional
1,102,500 shares of common stock from existing shareholders to cover over-allotments. The net proceeds of the offering to the Company
totaled approximately $131.2 million. The net proceeds were used to {1) repay a portion of the senior term loans and & portion of the senior
subordinated loan and to pay related prepayment premiums, (2} pay a distribution in an aggregate amount equal to the accrued and unpaid
dividends on the preferred units of GEEG Holdings, LLC, and (3) the balance was used for general corporate purposes.
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Upon completion of the IPQ, the Company’s previously outstanding 1,008,968 preferred units with a $100 par value and 1,122,280
comman units with a $10 par value were converted to 5,044,839 and 31,558,501 shares of common stock, respectively. The 103,889 outstand-
ing options to purchase common units at the time of the IPO were converted to 2,921,359 common share options. All share and per share
amounts on the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been restated to give effect to the conversion of common units to
common shares using a 28.1 to 1.0 conversion ratio.

4. DEBT EXTINGUISHMENT

On May 23, 2001, the Company retired certain existing debt of approximately $172.9 million by refinancing $60.0 million into a Term A loan
under an amended and restated senior credit facility and using $112.9 million of IPO proceeds to pay off the outstanding balances on the
senior Term B and Term C loans of $103.8 million and §13.9 million, respectively, and $27.5 million of the senior subordinated loan. On June
15, 2001, the Company retired the remaining $40.0 million of its senior subordinated loan by borrowing an additional $35.0 million on the new
Term A senior loan and $5.0 miliion on the Company’s revolving credit facility.

An extraordinary loss, net of tax, on these debt extinguishments of approximately $18.1 million was recognized during 2001. The loss
included $13.4 million of retirement premiums, $8.0 million write-off of the senicr subordinated loan discount, and $8.2 million write-off of
associated debt issuance costs, net of a tax benefit of $11.5 million.

5. GOODWILL

The Company adopted SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Gther Intangible Assets”, effective December 30, 2001, the beginning of our 2002 fiscal year.
Under SFAS 142, goodwill is no longer amortized but reviewed for impairment annually, or mare frequently if certain indicators arise. The
Company has completed its transitional and annual impairment testing and no material changes to the carrying value of goodwill and other
intangible assets were made as a result of the adoption of SFAS 142. Had the Company been accounting for its goodwill under SFAS 142 for
all periods presented, the Company's earnings and income per share would have been as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

December 27, December 28, December 28,
2003 2002 2001
Reported net income $ 19,784 $ 51877 $ 120,636
Add back goodwill amortization — — 1,716
Adjusted net income 3 19,784 $ 51877 $ 122,352
Basic earnings per common share:
Reported $ 044 $ 118 $ 300
Goodwill amortization per basic share — — 0.04
Adjusted basic earnings per share $ 044 $ 118 $ 304
Diluted earnings per common share:
Reported $ 043 $ 14 § 287
Goodwill amortization per diluted share — — 0.04
Adjusted diluted earnings per share $ 043 § 114 § 291

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income after adjusting for preferred dividends by the weighted-average of common
shares outstanding during the period. Preferred dividends were $0, $0 and $2.9 million for the years ended December 27, 2003, December 28,
2002 and December 29, 2001.

The changes in the carrying amount of goadwill for the years ended December 29, 2001, December 28, 2002 and December 27, 2003 by
operating segment are as follows (in thousands):

Heat Auxitiary
Recovery Power
Equipment Equipment Corporate Total

Balance as of December 30, 2000 $26,185 $18,447 $1,247 $45.879
Goodwill from business acquisition — 837 — 837
Amartization (955) (661} (100) {1,716)
Balance as of December 29, 2001 $25,230 $18,623 $1.147 $45,000
Balance as of December 28, 2002 $25,230 $18,623 $1.147 345,000
Balance as of December 27, 2003 $25,230 $18,623 $1,147 $45,000

The Company reviews its good will for potential impairment on at least an annual basis.
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6. INCOME TAXES

Prior to the Company's IPO, the Company and its primary operating subsidiaries were limited liability companies (LLCs) treated as partnerships
for federal income tax purposes. However, bacause some of the Company's subsidiaries were corporations prior to the IPQ, our historical
consolidated financia! statements refiect a small income tax provision (benefit) for those periods. Also, due to the Company's change in tax
status at the [PO date from an LLC to a taxable entity, the Company was required to record all deferred tax assets and liabilities which were
previously the respansibility of the LLC members. As a result, the Company recorded on the date of the reorganization a net deferred tax asset
of approximately $88.0 miflion and recorded a corresponding $88.0 million income tax benefit.

The following summarizes the income tax provision (benefits) for the fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands, does not reflect
effects of extraordinary loss and recognition of deferred tax asset upen conversion to a taxable entity):

2003 2002 2001
Current:
Federal § (2,571) $23,002 $20.870
State 207 2,682 2,221
Foreign 3,026 4,148 1,613
Total current 662 29,832 24,704
Deferred 11,464 3,335 {1,799
Income tax provision $12,126 $33.167 $22,905
Income before the provision for income taxes for the tax years 2003, 2002 and 2001 was as follows (in thousands):
2003 2002 2001
Domestic $23,478 $72,630 $56,114
Foreign 8,432 12,414 2,617
Total $31,910 $85,044 $58,731

As of December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002, respectively, the components of deferred income taxes consist of the following
{in thousands}:

2003 2002

Assets:

Cost in excess of net assets of business acquired $58,718 $66,574

Inventories 9,637 14,071

Reserves and other accruals 6,840 7,525

Accrued compensation and benefits 633 789

Tax credit carryforward — 680

Other expenses nat currently deductible 211 644

Tatal assets ) 76,038 90,283

Liabilities:

Property and equipment (3.630) (3,095)
Net deferred tax assets $72,409 £87,188

The Company's effective tax rate is different from its statutory rate for fiscal year 2001 due to periods of time when the Company was a
non-taxable LLC entity. The unaudited pro forma tax provision (benefit) shown on the consolidated statements of income is presented assuming
the Company had been a C-Corporation during the entire fiscal year 2001 using effective rates of 39 percent and by excluding the effect of
recording the one-time tax benefit for the change in tax status.

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate is as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Statutory federal income tax rate 34.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefits 3.5% 35% 3.5%
Other, net 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

38.0% 39.0% 39.0%
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As of December 27, 2003, undistributed earnings of international subsidiaries of approximately $2.1 million were considered to have
been reinvested indefinitely, and accordingly, the Company has not provided U.S. income taxes on such earnings. Based on the foreign income
taxes that can be claimed as foreign tax credits, no significant additional U.S. taxes would be required if the foreign subsidiaries would remit
their retained earnings.

The 1% decrease in the 2003 statutory federal income tax rate is due to lower income levels. However, for purposes of determining the
deferred tax assets, the Company used a 39% effective income tax rate as we expect to have higher income levels when the deferred tax
assets are realized.

7. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain of the Company’s investors provide consultation services to the Company, for which the Company is charged management fees. Total
expenses under these arrangements were $1.3 million, $1.3 million and $1.0 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. In 2001, we paid
Harvest an additional $0.5 million for assistance in obtaining the amended and restated senior credit facility following the close of our IPO.
Under a management agreement with Harvest, we are contractually committed to annual payments of certain fees for financial advisory and
strategic planning services to Harvest of $1.3 million per year. The terms of the management agreement provide for automatic renewals of
additional one-year periods commencing each August unless terminated for cause or by Harvest. During any subsequent renewal period of the
management agreement the management fee will decrease to $750,000 per year if the affiliates of Harvest sell more than 50% of the shares
of the Company’s common stack they owned at the time of the Company’s initial public offering on May 23, 2001. The management fee will be
eliminated and the management agreement will terminate, if in any subsequent renewal period the affiliates of Harvest sell mare than 66.6%
of the shares of the Company's common stock they owned on May 23, 2001.

8. UNCOMPLETED CONTRACTS

The Heat Recovery Equipment segment enters into contracts that aliow for periodic billings over the contract term. At any point in time, each
project under construction could have either costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings or billings in excess of costs and estimated
garnings. The Auxiliary Power Equipment segment typically bills customers only at the completion of contracts and no earnings are recognized
by the Auxiliary Power Equipment segment until contract completion.

Costs, earnings and billings related to uncompleted contracts consist of the following:

December 27, December 28,

{in thousands} 2003 2002
Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts $ 811,140 $ 928711
Earnings recognized on uncompleted contracts 131,385 196,466
Total 942,525 1,125,177
Less — billings to date 955,112 1,170,130
Net § 112.587) $ (44,953)

The net amounts are included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the foliowing headings:

Oecember 27, December 28,

fin thousands) 2003 2002
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings $ 40,706 $ 627289
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings (53,293) (107.242)
Net $ (12,587) $ (44953)
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company's long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 27, December 28,
{in thousands) 2003 2002
Term A senior loan, $24,938 bearing interest at Eurodollar rate plus 1.0%
{2.46% at December 27, 2003}, principal and interest payable guarterly,
as defined, through May 2005 $ 24938 $ 60,000
Other 25 73
24,963 60,073
Less current maturities {14) {5.423)
Total long-term debt § 24949 $ 54650
Future maturities of long-term debt as of December 27, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):
2004 $ 14
2005 24,949
Total $ 24963

The Company’s amended and restated senior credit facility matures in May 2005. At the Company’s option, borrowings under the amend-
ed and restated senior credit facility will bear interest at either the Eurodallar rate or an alternate base rate, plus, in each case, an applicable
margin. The applicable margin will range from 1.0% to 2.25% in the case of a Eurodollar based loan and from 0% to 1.25% in the case of a
base rate loan, in each case, based on a feverage ratio. At December 27, 2003, the term debt bore interest at an average rate of 2.46%.

The amended and restated senior credit facility is guaranteed by all of the Company's domestic subsidiaries, and is secured by a lien on
all of the Company’s assets. The amended and restated senior credit facility contains various restrictions and covenants, which among others,
include maximum leverage and capital expenditures levels and minimum interest and fixed charge coverage ratios. Restrictions are also in
place related to additional borrowings, payment of dividends, sales of assets and mergers and acquisitions. As of December 27, 2003, the
Company was in compliance with all such restrictions and covenants.

The Company's revolving credit facility allows for revolving loans and letters of credit of up to $75.0 million. The revolving credit facility
also matures in May 2005. Borrowings under the revolving credit facility bear interest in the same manner as the senior credit facility
described above, and the Company pays an unused facility fee of 0.5%. As of December 27, 2003, there was no balance outstanding under
the revalver,

The Company uses latters of credit in its normal course of business. Letters of credit totaling $31.0 million were issued and outstanding
as of December 27, 2003 under the revolving credit facility. While no amounts had been drawn upon these letters of credit, the letters of credit
outstanding reduces amounts avaitable under the revolver.

10. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred Stock / Preferred Units. Prior to the Company’s IPQ, the Company had authorized and issued 1,008,968 preferred units with a $100
par value. The preferred units were not convertible and had na voting rights. Preferred unit members were entitled to an eight percent annual
preferred dividend computed on the members’ aggregate preferred equity balance. Preferred units had liquidation preference to the common
units in the event of a liquidation of the Company and had priarity on all equity distributions. The Board of Directars could, at its solte option,
redeem all or any part of the preferred units at a price equal to their aggregate preferred capital contribution plus accrued but not yet paid pre-
ferred dividends. Upon completion of the IPO these preferred units were converted to 5,044,839 shares of common stock. The Company's new
capital stock includes 5,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share, of which no shares are outstanding.

The board of directors, without stockholder approval, can issue preferred stock with voting and conversion rights.

Common Stock / Common Units. Prior to the Company's IPO, the Company had authorized and issued 1,122,280 current common units with a
$10 par value. Common units were entitled to one vote. Prior to the Recapitalization, the Company had authorized 52,106,800, 6,513,350 and
2,709,654 of Class A, B and Junior Units, respectively. Prior Class A and Junior units had one vote per unit. Class B units were nonvating. All
previously outstanding prior common units were converted to common stock as part of the IPO discussed in Note 3.

Upon completion of the IPG these common units were converted to 31,558,501 shares of common stock. The Company's new
capital stock includes 100,000,000 authorized shares of comman stock, $0.01 par value per share, of which 45,207,930 are outstanding at
December 27, 2003.
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Option Plans. In conjunction with the IPO all common unit option amounts previously granted under the 2000 Plan have been restated to give
effect to the conversion of common units to common shares using the 28.1 to 1.0 ratio.

in April 2001 the Company adopted the 2001 Option Plan (the 2001 Pfan). The 2001 Plan provides options to purchase up to 1,500,000
shares of common stock at an exercise price equal to fair value on the date of grant. Vesting provisions are at the discretion of the board of
directors along with the period of time during which options may be exercised, but in no event may it be more than 10 years from the grant
date of an option. As of December 27, 2003, 1,483,000 options have been granted under the 2001 Plan with 1,456,000 options outstanding at
the end of 2003.

In August 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Option Plan (the 2000 Plan). The 2000 Plan provided for granting of up to 3,440,257
options to purchase common units of the Company. Initially, forty percent of the comman units available for grant under the 2000 Plan were to
vest over four years and sixty percent of the common units available for grant under the 2000 Plan were to vest over the earlier of nine years
or when certain performance vesting criteria are met. In conjunction with our PO all options under this plan became immediately one hundred
percent vested. Options granted under this plan subsequent to the IPO were also fuily vested. However, none of the shares acquired upon
exercise of the options under this plan were allowed to be sold until May, 2003. As of December 27, 2003, 3,433,804 options have been
granted and 6,453 options are available to be granted. Total options exercised under the 2000 Plan totaled 1,254,590 as of the end of fiscal 2003.

As part of the Recapitalization, all options outstanding under a previous option plan (whether or not exercisable or vested) were
cancelled and holders of the cancelled options were paid an amount equal to the options’ fair value, resulting in a recapitalization charge of
$38.1 million.

Prior to October 31, 2000, the Company granted 2,769,792 options at $0.36 per common unit, which equaled fair value at the date of
grant. On October 31, 2000 the Company granted 151,567 options at $0.36 per common unit. At the date of grant, the deemed fair value of the
Company’s common units was higher than the $0.36 exercise price resulting in approximately $300,000 of unearned compensation which has
been recorded on a net basis in undistributed earnings {deficit) along with a correspanding $300,000 increase in undistributed earnings
(deficit) due to the effect of the October 31, 2000 option grant. Compensation expense related ta the October 31, 2000 option grant totaled
approximately $880,000 in 2001.

Information with respect to the Company’s stock option plans is summarized as follows:

Number of Common Shares

Options Weighted Average

Qutstanding Exercise price

Qutstanding at December 30, 2000 2,921,359 $ 0.36
Granted 571,500 14.47
Cancelled {59,055) 0.36
Qutstanding at December 29, 2001 3,433,804 2.7
Granted 750,000 487
Forfeited {4,000) 14.47
Exercised (23,339) 0.36
Outstanding at December 28, 2002 4,156,465 3.10
Granted 739,000 6.10
Forfeited (40,500) 6.65
Exercised {1,231,251) 0.36
Outstanding at December 27, 2003 3,623,714 $ 4.60
Exercisable at December 29, 2001 3,433,804 3 2.71
Exercisable at December 28, 2002 3,406,465 $ 2.73
Exercisable at December 27, 2003 2242214 $ 4.03

Stock option grant prices
$0.35 $4.87 $6.10 $14.47
Options outstanding:
Number outstanding 1,607,714 717,000 739,000 560,000
Weighted average remaining contractual life (years) 6.60 8.96 9.96 7.83
Options exercisable:

Number exercisable 1,607,714 74,500 — 560,000

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Employment Agreements. On May 1, 2002, the Company entered into employment agreements with terms of two to three years with certain

members of management with automatic one-year renewal periods at expiration dates. The agreements provide for, among other things,
compensation, benefits and severance payments.
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Litigation. On Jung 3, 2003, Stone & Webster, Inc. and Stone & Webster Purchasing, Inc. (collectively, "S&W") commenced a lawsuit in the
U.S. District Court for the Southern District of lowa Central Division, against Deltak, L.L.C., one of our subsidiaries. S&W alleges Deltak
committed breach of contract and warranty and made certain intentional misrepresentations in connection with a contract to provide two heat
recovery steam generators for a project in which S&W was the general contractor. S&W alleges it incurred significant cost increases and
delays on the project resulting from certain design, constructability and fabrication issues related to the heat recovery steam generators
provided by Deltak, and S&W is seeking an unspecified amount of damages for costs. We believe we have meritorious defenses to the
allegations and intend to defend this action vigorously. [n addition, Deitak has filed counterclaims against S&W alleging, among other things,
breach of contract and unjust enrichment. The ultimate impact of this matter on the consolidated financial position or results of operations
cannot be determined at this time.

The Company is also involved in legal actions which arise in the ordinary course of its business. Although the outcomes of any such
legal actions cannot be predicted, in the opinion of management, the resolution of any currently pending or threatened actions will not have a
material adverse effect upon the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company.

Warranty. Estimated costs refated to product warranty are accrued as revenue is recognized and included in cost of sales. Estimated costs are
based upon past werranty claims and sales history. Warranty terms vary by contract but generally provide for a term of three years or less.
We manage our exposure to warranty claims by having our field service and quality assurance personnel regularly monitor gur projects and
maintain ongoing and regular communications with the customer.

A reconciliation of the changes to our warranty accrual for 2003 and 2002 is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2003 2002
Balance at beginning of period $ 19,460 $ 16,489
Changes to previous estimates {2,559) (1,157)
Accruals during the period 9,614 10,982
Settlements made {in cash or in kind} during the period {11,511} (6,854)
Ending balance § 15,004 $ 19,460

Leases. The Compary leases machinery, transportation equipment and office, warehouse and manufacturing facilities, which are noncanceliable
and expire at various dates. Tota! rental expense for all operating leases for 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $2.5 millian, $2.9 million and $2.6 million,
respectively.

Future minimum annual fease payments under these noncancellable operating leases at December 27, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

2004 § 2215
2005 1,824
2006 1,414
2007 1,398
2008 1,405
Thereafter 2,936

Total $ 11,192

None of the leases include contingent rental provisions.

Employee Benefit Plans. Deltak maintains a profit-sharing plan for employees. Deltak's expense for this plan totaled $0.4 miliion, $0.8 million
and $1.5 mitlion for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. In addition to the Deltak profit-sharing plan, GPEG maintains a 401(k) plan covering
substantially all of Deltak, Braden and CFi's employees. Expense for the GPEG 401{k) plan for 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $0.9, $1.0 million and
$1.0 million, respectively.

Braden participates in a defined benefit multi-employer union pension fund covering all union employees. As required by labor con-
tracts, Braden made contributions totaling $0.2 mitlion, $0.3 million and $0.5 million for 2003, 20602 and 2007, respectively. These contributions
are determined in accordance with the provisions of negotiated tabor contracts and generally are based on the number of hours worked.
Braden may be liable for its share of unfunded vested benefits, if any, related to the union pension fund. Information from the union pension
fund’s administrators indicates there are no unfunded vested benefits.
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12. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Changes in current operating items were as follows (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Accounts receivable $ 23,262 $ 40,338 $ (55,384}
Inventories 1,390 1,570 (1,204)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings 21,583 69,066 {61,126)
Accounts payable (6,399) (26.232) 17,950
Accrued expenses and other 749 {3,704 29,789
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings {53.949) {38,280} 26412
$ {13,364} § 42,758 $ {43563}
Supplemental cash flow disclosures are as follows (in thousands):
2003 2002 2001
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 1,671 $ 3867 $ 18,488
Income taxes 3,751 29,415 2,254
Non-cash transactions:
Settlement of customer accounts receivable against estimated costs 12,600 — —
Settlement of customer accounts receivable against amounts owed to customer included in
accounts payable 4,400 — —
Tax benefit of stock options exercised 2,392 — —

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The "management approach” called for by SFAS 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” has been used
by GPEG management to present the segment information which follows. GPEG considered the way its management team organizes its opera-
tions far making operating decisions and assessing performance and considered which components of its enterprise have discrete financial
information available. Management makes decisions using a product group focus and its analysis resulted in two operating segments, Heat
Recovery Equipment and Auxiliary Power Equipment. The Company evaluates performance based on net income or loss not including certain

items as noted below.

Accounting policies used by the segments are the same as those described in Note 2. Intersegmenit revenues and transactions were not
significant. Corporate assets consist primarily of cash and deferred tax assets. Capital expenditures do not include amounts arising from the
acquisition of businesses. Expenses associated with the extraordinary losses on debt extinguishment have not been allocated. Interest income

has not been allocated as cash management activities are handled at a corporate level.
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The following table presents information about segment income and assets:

Heat Auxiliary
Recovery Power
{in thousands} Equipment Equipment
2003
Revenues $119,893 $ 143,885
Interest expense 812 1,260
Depreciation and amortization 1,334 2175
Income tax provision 1,657 10,886
Segment income 2,500 17,805
Assets 77,027 97,545
Capital expenditures 75 226
2002
Revenues $308,628 § 278177
Interest expense 1,784 2,624
Depreciation and amortization 1,428 2,218
Income tax provision 11,729 21,800
Segment income i 18,345 34,254
Assets 139,637 106,763
Capital expenditures 569 2,281
2001
Revenues $442,319 $ 281,185
Interest expense 5,798 10,326
Depreciation and amortization 2,134 2,621
Income tax provision 10,608 12,735
Segment income 29,073 23,023
Assets 207,547 146,573
Capital expenditures 1,073 10,429
The following tables present information which reconciles segment information to consolidated totals:

{in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Income from Continuing Operations
Total segment income § 20,305 § 52,599 § 52,096
Tax benefit from tax status change — — 88,000
Unallocated recapitalization charge — — —
Unallocated interest income 560 198 228
Other {1.081) {920) {1.628)
Consolidated income before extraordinary loss § 19,784 § 51877 $ 138,695

December 27, December 28, December 29,
{in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Assets
Total segment assets $ 174572 $ 246,400 $ 354,121
Corporate cash and cash equivalents 42172 52,805 707
Other unallocated amounts, principally deferred tax assets 64,252 70,499 75,803
Consolidated assets $ 280,996 $ 369,704 $ 430531
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2003

Segment Cansolidated
{in thousands) Totals Adjustments Totals
Other Significant Itams
Interest expense $ 2072 $ — $ 2072
Interest income 8 560 568
Expenditures for assets 301 110 411
Depreciation and amortization 3,509 54 3,563
2002
Segment Consolidated
{in thousands) Totals Adjustments Totals
Interest expense $ 4408 $ — $ 4408
Interest income — 198 198
Expenditures for assets 2,850 19 2,869
Depreciation and amortization 3,646 36 3,682
2001
Segment Consolidated
{in thousands) Totals Adjustments Totals
Interest expense $ 16,124 $ — $ 16,124
Interest income — 228 228
Expenditures for assets 11,502 57 11,559
Depreciation and amortization 4,755 108 4,864
Product Revenues. The following table represents revenues by product group:
{in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Heat recovery equipment segment:
HRSGs $ 86.667 $ 231,019 $ 324211
Specialty boilers 33.226 77,609 118,108
119,893 308,628 442 318
Auxiliary power eguipment segment;
Exhaust systems § 48463 $ 67,375 $123919
Inlet systems 58,897 134,153 86,798
Other 36,525 76.649 70,468
143,885 278,177 281185
Total $ 263,778 $ 586,805 $ 723504
Geographic Revenues. The following table presents revenues by geographic region:
{in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
North America $ 180,766 $ 483,54 $ 669,242
South America 1,400 8,821 16,508
Europe 38,988 48,481 13,793
Asia 17.650 30,775 6,447
Other 24,974 15,187 17,516
Total § 263778 $ 586,805 $ 723,504

Management attributed sales to geographic location based on the customer-determined destination of the delivered product.
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14. SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY INFORMATION (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth

2003
Revenues $ 77.026 $ 64,002 $ 57,301 3 65,449
Gross profit 21,218 16,950 13,847 19,482
Operating income 11,754 8,295 5,269 8,096
Income tax provision 4,350 3,081 1,928 2,727
Net income 6,866 4,820 3,015 5,083
Income per share:

Basic 0.16 0.1 0.07 0.10

Diluted 0.15 0.1 0.07 0.10
Price range per share:

High 5.87 6.42 6.05 8.79

Low 4.70 481 4.65 5.07
2002
Revenues $203,527 $162,916 $112,673 $107,689
Gross profit 36,728 35,890 28,498 30,350
Operating income 26,273 25,069 17,360 20,552
Income tax provision 9,746 9,346 6,322 7,753
Net income 15,244 14,618 9,889 12,126
Income per share:

Basic 0.35 0.33 0.22 0.28

Diluted 033 0.32 0.22 0.27
Price range per share:

High 15.54 12.49 10.05 553

Low 8.60 8.49 3.90 374
2001
Revenues $156,170 $171,435 $180,757 $215,142
Gross profit 26,414 31,007 3,527 42,598
Operating income 17.484 20,167 21,276 30,570
Income tax provision 931 3,124 7,389 11,461
Net income 10,161 80,992 11,556 17.927
Income per share:

Basic : 0.26 2.4 0.26 0.41

Diluted 0.24 2.04 0.25 0.39
Price range per share: ™

High — 37.90 3095 17.60

Low — 22.05 1355 11.45

(1) Price range per share Is not applicable to periads prior to the IPO on May 18, 2001, as no established public trading market existed.

15. RESTRUCTURING

in October 2003, we announced a management restructuring plan pursuant to which certain employees were offered either one-time termina-
tion or retirement benefits. Certain employees that were offered the retirement incentive packages entered into consulting agreements with us
subsequent to their retirement. The expense of the consulting agreements will be recognized as the services are provided aver the term of the
agreements. In additicn, retiring employees were offered the right to amend their stock option agreements to extend the date such options
remain exercisable from 30 days after termination of employment to one year after termination of employment. In some cases, this plan also
provided for the acceleration of vesting for certain unvested stock options. Due to variable plan option accounting under APB Opinion No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” we will expense the intrinsic value of the options. We recorded charges of approximately $3.9

million during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2003 related to the restructuring plan.

Under the 2003 management restructuring plan, a retirement benefits agreement was entered into with our Chief Executive Officer,
Larry Edwards, pursuant to which he determines his own future retirement date. At this time, the retirement date is unknown. Upon
retirement, Mr. Edwards will receive a payment of approximately $1.9 million, which has been accrued in Other long-term liabilities as of
December 27, 2003.

Approximately $1.1 million and $2.8 million of the fiscal year 2003 restructuring costs were allocated to the Heat Recovery Equipment
and Auxiliary Power Equipment segments, respectively.
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ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

{TEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures {as such term is defined under
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based
on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and

procedures are effective to ensure that information related to us, including our consolidated subsidiaries, required to be disclosed in our

periodic reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the Security and Exchange Commissians rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting. There have been no significant changes in our internal controls over financial reporting dur-
ing the period covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial
reporting.

PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The information required by this Item with respect to the Company’s directors and certain beneficial owners of the Company’s common stock is
incorporated herein by reference from the sections of the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held May 26, 2004 {the “Proxy Statement”) entitled "Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.” The
information required by this Item with respect to the Company’s executive afficers appears at Item 4A of Part | of this Form 10-K.

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to all directars, officers and employees, including the
principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer of the Company. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is
publicly available in the “Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website at wwaw.globalpower.com under “Corporate Governance.”

If we make any amendments to, or any waivers from, the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to the principal executive officer, princi-
pal financial officer or principal accounting officer, or any person performing similar functions, we will disclose such amendment or
waiver on that website or in a report on Form 8-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from the sections of the Proxy Statement entitled "Executive
Compensation” and "Proposal One — Election of Directors.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the sections of the Praxy Statement entitled "Principal
Stockhoiders and Security Ownership of Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information.”
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SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
GLOBAL POWER EQUIPMENT GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULES OF VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

2001, 2002, 2003

Balance Charges to Balance
at Beginning Costs and atEnd

Description of Period Expenses {a} Write-o0ffs {h) of Period
fin thausands)
For the year ended December 29, 2001:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $1.841 $616 $ (72) $2.385
For the year ended December 28 2002:

Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,385 357 {967) 1,775
For the year eded December 27, 2003:

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,775 154 (604) 1,325

{a) Noamounts were charged to other accounts in any period.
(b} Amounts are net of recoveries of 80, $0 and $0 for 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on March 9, 2004.

Global Power Equipment Group Inc.
BY /s/ Larry Edwards

Larry Edwards
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 9, 2004.

/s/ Stephen Eisenstein

Stephen Eisenstein, Vice Chairman of the Board

/s/ Larry Edwards

Larry Edwards
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board

/s/ James P. Wilson

James P. Wilson
Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Finance
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Adrian W. Doherty Jr.

Adrian W. Doherty Jr., Director

/s/ Ed Hotard

Ed Hotard, Director

/s/ Ira Kleinman

Ira Kleinman, Director

/s/ Jerry E. Ryan

Jerry E. Ryan, Director

/s/ Bengt Sohlen

Bengt Sohlen, Oirector
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

This is a copy of the audit report previously issued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection with Global Power Equipment Group Inc.'s fil-
ing on Form 10-K far the fiscal year ended December 29, 2001. This audit report has not been reissued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection
with this filing on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 27, 2003.

To Global Power Equipment Group Inc.:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, the consolidated financiat statements of
Global Power Equipment Group inc. and Subsidiaries included in this Form 10-K and have issued our report thereon dated February 15, 2002,
Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules of
valuation and qualifying accounts are the responsibility of the Company’s management and are presented for purposes of complying with the
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and are not part of the basic consolidated financial statements. These schedules have been sub-
jected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic consclidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state in all
material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consclidated financial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota,
February 15, 2002

Report of Independent Auditors on
Financia! Statement Schedule

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Global Power Equipment Group Inc.:

Our audit of the consclidated financial statements referred to in our report dated February 13, 2004 appearing in this Form 10-K also included
an audit of the financial statement schedule for the years ended December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002 listed in [tem 15(d) of this Form
10-K. In our opinicn, the financial statement scheduie as it relates to the years ended December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002 presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
February 13, 2004
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